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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D. C. 20549

Form 10-K

%] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 20:

OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number: 0-26906

ASTA FUNDING, INC.

(Exact Name of Registrant Specified in its Charter)

Delaware 22-3388607
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization Identification No.)
210 Sylvan Avenue, Englewoo 07632
Cliffs, NJ (Zip Code)

(Address of principal executive office

Issuer’s telephone number, including area code: (2) 567-5648
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Exchange Act: None
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ¢fie Exchange Act:

Common Stock, par value $.01 per share
(Title of Class)

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405e0%#turities
Act Yes O No M

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the
Act Yes O No M

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantfi(@dl all reports required to be filed by Sectiaghdr 15(d) of the
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mofah$or such shorter period that the registrans wemjuired to file such
reports), and (2) has been subject to such filgggiirements for the past 90 days. Yds No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ldsmstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥&eb site, if any,
every Interactive Data File required to be subrditad posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulationdbing the preceding
12 months (or for such shorter period that thestegit was required to submit and post such fildkg®s O No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiilets pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K ($@mt2229.405 of this
chapter) is not contained herein, and will not betained, to the best of the registrant’s knowledgeefinitive proxy or
information statements incorporated by referendeart Ill of this Form 10-K or any amendment tstRorm 10-K. M

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantle&zge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-accelerated filer, or a
smaller reporting company. See the definitionslafde accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” arghialler reporting
company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Chenk):

Large accelerated file[d Accelerated filer Non-acceleratefiler 0  Smaller reporting compan
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Aatgs O No
4}

The aggregate market value of voting and nonvatorgmon equity held by non-affiliates of the registrwas
approximately $75,333,576 as of the last businagsfithe registrant’'s most recently completed sddiscal quarter.

As of December 10, 2010, the registrant had 144XBshares of Common Stock issued and outstanding.
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Documents incorporated by reference:

Portions of the registrant’s Proxy Statement fer2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders are incorfaata
herein by reference in Part Il of this Annual Regm Form 10-K to the extent stated herein. Suckystatement
will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Coission within 120 days of the registrant’s fiscahy ended
September 30, 201
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Caution Regarding Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains certaimrd-looking statements within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1993 statements other than statements of histormetisfincluded or
incorporated by reference in this annual reporform 10-K, including without limitation, statememéegarding our
future financial position, business strategy, busigerojected revenues, projected costs and plachslgjective of
management for future operations, are forward-loglstatements. Forward-looking statements genecafiybe
identified by the use of forward-looking terminojoguch as “may,” “will,” “expects,” “intends,” “plas,” “projects,”
“estimates,” “anticipates,” or “believes” or thegative thereof or any variation there on or simie@minology or

expressions.

We have based these forward-looking statementsipnwrent expectations and projections about éutur
events. These forward-looking statements are natagniees and are subject to known and unknown, risks
uncertainties and assumptions about us that maeaawr actual results, levels of activity, perfonceor
achievements to be materially different from antyfe results, levels of activity, performance dniagements
expressed or implied by such forward-looking staets. Important factors which could materially affeur results
and our future performance include, without limat our ability to purchase defaulted consumeeirables at
appropriate prices, changes in government reguisitioat affect our ability to collect sufficient aomts on our
defaulted consumer receivables, our ability to eyind retain qualified employees, changes in thditor capital
markets, changes in interest rates, deteriorati@tdonomic conditions, negative press regardingléi collection
industry which may have a negative impact on aat&bwillingness to pay the debt we acquire, amadeshents of
assumption underlying any of the foregoing, as waelbther factors set forth under “ltem 1A. Risktbes”
beginning on page 14 of this report and “ltem 7 -arfdigement’s Discussions and Analysis of Finanaisid@ion
and Results of Operation” below.

All subsequent written and oral forward-lookingtstaents attributable to us, or persons acting orbehalf,
are expressly qualified in their entirety by thesfgoing. Except as required by law, we assume tptdwpdate or
revise any forward-looking statements.




Table of Contents

Part |

Iltem 1. Business.
Overview

Asta Funding, Inc., together with its wholly owngignificant operating subsidiaries Palisades Ctibed_LC,
Palisades Acquisition XVI, LLC (“Palisades XVI"),ATIV Recovery Solutions LLC (“VATIV”) and other
subsidiaries, not all wholly owned, and not constédamaterial (the “Company”), is engaged in theifess of
purchasing, and managing for its own account:

< Primary charged-off receivables consistingafounts that have been written-off by the origirmand may
have been previously serviced by collection agen

« Semi-performing receivables consisting of acts where the debtor is currently making partidt@gular
monthly payments, but the accounts may have begter-off by the originators

« Performing receivables consisting of accounts whteeelebtor is making regular monthly payments thay
or may not have been delinquent in the past;

« Distressed consumer receivables consistingeofinpaid debts of individuals to banks, finanoepanies
and other credit and service provide

A large portion of our distressed consumer recéeésmbre MasterCar8l, Visa® and other credit card accounts
which were charged-off by the issuers or providersion-payment. We acquire these and other consume
receivable portfolios at substantial discountshtirtface values. The discounts are based on dracteristics
(issuer, account size, debtor location and agebf)df the underlying accounts of each portfolio.

We operate solely in the United States in one tapter business segment.

Prior to purchasing a portfolio, we perform a qiagive and quantitative analysis of the underlyiegeivables
and calculate the purchase price which is interidexdfer us an adequate return on our investmeat aérvicing
expenses. After purchasing a portfolio, we activabnitor performance and review and adjust ourectibn and
servicing strategies accordingly.

We purchase receivables from credit grantors aherstthrough privately negotiated direct saleskémed
transactions and auctions in which sellers of red#es seek bids from several pre-qualified debthmasers. We
fund portfolios through a combination of internalfgnerated cash flow and bank debt, if needed.

Our objective is to maximize our return on investina acquired consumer receivable portfolios. Assult,
before acquiring a portfolio, we analyze the pditfeo determine how to best maximize collectionsicost
efficient manner and decide whether to use ourmaleservicing and collection department, thirdtpaollection
agencies, attorneys, or a combination of all tlog#ons.

When we outsource the servicing of receivables hoamagement typically determines the appropriatd-th
party collection agencies and attorneys based etyfhe of receivables purchased. Once a groupcefuables is
sent to third-party collection agencies and attgsneur management actively monitors and reviewghird-party
collection agencies’ and attorney®rformance on an ongoing basis. Based on portfaiformance consideratiol
our management will either (i) move certain recblga from one thirgarty collection agency or attorney to ano
or to our internal servicing department if it amates that this will result in an increase in ectlons, or (i) sell
portions of the portfolio accounts. Our internall@ction unit, which currently employs approximatdlO collection-
related staff, including senior management, asasia benchmarking our third-party collection agjes and
attorneys, and provides us with greater flexibifdy servicing a percentage of our consumer retdévportfolios in-
house.

We are a Delaware corporation whose principal etkezwoffices are located at 210 Sylvan Avenue, Englod
Cliffs, New Jersey 07632. We were incorporated @wNlersey on July 7, 1994 and were reincorporat&elaware
on October 12, 1995, as the result of a merger aviitelaware corporation. We were formed as anatfilof Asta
Group, Incorporated (the “Family Entity”), an eptdwned by Arthur Stern, our Chairman
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Emeritus, Gary Stern, our Chairman, President dmdf@Executive Officer, and other members of ther@family,
to purchase, at a small discount to face valuajliestallment sales contracts secured by motbicles. We
became a public company in November 1995. In 1@@%capitalized on our management’s more than 4fsyafa
experience and expertise in acquiring and managpngumer receivable portfolios for the Family Bnths a
result, we ceased purchasing automobile contractsveith the assistance and financial support effamily Entity
and a partner, purchased our first significant oomer receivable portfolio. Since then, the Famihyity ceased
acquiring consumer receivable portfolios and, agioglly, does not compete with the Company.

Industry Overview

The purchasing, servicing and collection of chargédsemi-performing and performing consumer reables
is an industry that is driven by:

« increasing levels of consumer de
« increasing defaults of the underlying receivabes]
« increasing utilization of thii-party providers to collect such receivab

Strategy

Although we are in a challenging economic period an enhanced regulatory environment, our primary
objective remains to utilize our management’s eigpee and expertise by identifying, evaluatinge¢ipg and
acquiring consumer receivable portfolios and mazing collections of such receivables in a costédfit manner.
Our strategies include:

* managing the collection and servicing of our consuraceivable portfolios, including outsourcing ajamity
of those activities to maintain low fixed overhe

« selling accounts on an opportunistic basiaggaly when our efforts have been exhausted thrdraglitional
collecting methods, or when we can capitalize aciqpy during times when we feel the pricing envirent
is high; anc

 capitalizing on our strategic relationshipsdentify and acquire consumer receivable portihs pricing,
financing and conditions perm

Because our purchases of new portfolios of consuetaivables has been reduced, we expect to see a
corresponding reduction in finance income in futgwarters and future years, to the extent we hatveeplaced our
receivables acquired for liquidation. Instead, weulsed on reducing our debt and being highly disgd in our
portfolio purchases. We continue to review potémt@tfolio acquisitions regularly and will buy #te right price,
where we believe the purchase will yield our dekiae of return.

We believe that, given our management’s experienceexpertise, along with the fragmented yet grgwin
market in which we operate, as we implement thiststerm strategy, we will be in position to aggitow our
business when economic conditions stabilize.

Consumer Receivables Business

Receivables Purchase Program

We purchase bulk receivable portfolios that inclatarged-off receivables, semi-performing receiealaind
performing receivables. These receivables consistapily of MasterCar®, Visa® and private label credit card
accounts, among other types of receivables.

In the past we have acquired, directly and indiyetitrough the consumer receivable portfolios thatacquire
secured consumer asset portfolios, consisting piliyref receivables secured by automobiles.
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We identify potential portfolio acquisitions on angoing basis through:

 our relationships with industry participarfiteancial institutions, collection agencies, in@stand our
financing sources

* brokers who specialize in the sale of consumerivabée portfolios; ant

* Other sources

Historically, the purchase prices of the consureeeivable portfolios we have acquired have rangsd fess
than $100,000 to approximately $15,000,000; howeneracquired one group of portfolios in March 2067
$300 million (the “Portfolio Purchase”As a part of our strategy to acquire consumer vatee portfolios, we hawv:
from time to time, entered into, and may continmertter into, participation and profit sharing agnents with our
sources of financing and our third-party collectamencies and attorneys. These arrangements maghform of
a joint bid, with one of our third-party collecti@gencies, collection attorneys, or financing sesithat assist in the
acquisition of a portfolio and provides us with mdavorable nomecourse financing terms or a discounted serv
commission. Current participation agreements inelad approximate 50% sharing arrangement afterawve h
recouped 100% of the cost of the portfolio purchalae the cost of funds.

We utilize our relationships with brokers, thirdryacollection agencies and attorneys, and setleportfolios
to locate portfolios for purchase. Our senior mamagnt is responsible for:

 coordinating due diligence, including, in some saon-site visits to the sell¢'s office;
« stratifying and analyzing the portfolio charactgcs,

« valuing the portfolio

 preparing bid proposal

 negotiating pricing and term

« negotiating and executing a purchase cont

« closing the purchase; ai

 coordinating the receipt of account documentat@ritie acquired portfolio:

The seller or broker typically supplies us wittheit a sample listing or the actual portfolio besiodd, through
an electronic form of media. We analyze each corsusteivable portfolio to determine if it meets purchasing
criteria. We may then prepare a bid or negotigiarahase price. If a purchase is completed, managemonitors
the portfolio’s performance and uses this informain determining future buying criteria includipgcing. An
integral part of the acquisition process is thersight by our Investment Committee. This commitestablished in
January 2008, must review and approve all investsredmove $1 million in value. Voting criteria arera stringent
as the size of the investment increases. The dumembers of the committee are the Chairman Enseiiie Chief
Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, atige Senior Vice President. As the Chairman Emeand Chief
Executive Officer are related family members, asteone other officer must approve transactions.

After determining that an investment should yieldaglequate return on our acquisition cost aftarceg fees
including court costs, we use a variety of qualiaand quantitative factors to calculate the estéd cash flows.
The following variables are analyzed and factorgd our original estimates:

 the number of collection agencies previously attémgpto collect the receivables in the portfol
« the average balance of the receivak

« the age of the receivables (as older recedgablight be more difficult to collect or might les$ cost
effective);

« past history of performance of similar assetas we purchase portfolios of similar assets, alebe we
have built significant history on how these recblea will liquidate and cash flov

* number of months since cha-off;
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e payments made since chz-off;
« the credit originator and their credit guidelin

« the locations of the debtors as there arestaith better regulatory environments, betteremibn histories,
and that are better suited to attempt to colleeinid ultimately we have better predictability o figuidation:
and the expected cash flows all of which factoo imtir cash flow analysi:

« financial wherewithal of the selle

« jobs or property of the debtors within portfol— this is of particular importance. Debtors wittbgoor
property are more likely to repay their obligateomd conversely, debtors without jobs or propergylass
likely to repay their obligation; ar

« the ability to obtain customer statements fromdtginal issuer

We obtain and utilize, as appropriate, input inglgd but not limited to, monthly collection projems and
liquidation rates from our third party collectiogemcies and attorneys, as further evidentiary matessist us in
developing collection strategies and in modelirgéRpected cash flows for a given portfolio.

Once a receivable portfolio has been identifiedpfmtential purchase, we prepare various analyssesdoan
extracting customer level data from external sagirother than the issuer, to analyze the potecdiédctability of
the portfolio. We also analyze the portfolio by qmaring it to similar portfolios previously acquireg us. In
addition, we perform qualitative analyses of ottmatters affecting the value of portfolios, incluglia review of the
delinquency, charge off, placement and recovericigsl of the originator as well as the collectianherity granted
by the originator to any third-party collection agis, and, if possible, by reviewing their recgvefforts on the
particular portfolio. After these evaluations acenpleted, members of our senior management disbadtdings,
decide whether to make the purchase and finale@tice at which we are willing to purchase thetfotio.

We purchase most of our consumer receivable pa#falirectly from originators and other sellerslirating,
from time to time, our third-party collection ag@wand attorneys, through privately negotiateddisales, and
through auction-type sales in which sellers of neat@es seek bids from several pre-qualified delstpasers. We
also, from time to time, use the services of breKer sourcing consumer receivable portfolios. ften for us to
consider a potential seller as a source of reckgah variety of factors are considered. Sellarstrdemonstrate tr
they have:

« adequate internal controls to detect fre
« the ability to provide po-sale support; an
« the capacity to honor g-back and return warranty reque:

Generally, our portfolio purchase agreements pmotiicht we can return certain accounts to the seltéin a
specified time period. However, in some transastiove may acquire a portfolio with few, if any,htg to return
accounts to the seller. After acquiring a portfoli@ conduct a detailed analysis to determine whaadounts in the
portfolio should be returned to the seller. Althbube terms of each portfolio purchase agreeméferdexamples
of accounts that may be returned to the selleudel

« debts paid prior to the cutoff da
 debts in which the consumer filed bankruptcy ptiothe cutoff date
* debts in which the consumer was deceased prianttifaate; anc

« fraudulent account:

Accounts returned to sellers for fiscal years 2846 2009 have been determined to be immaterial. Our
purchase agreements generally do not contain awspon for a limitation on the number of accoutftat can be
returned to the seller.

We generally use third parties to determine bantkang deceased accounts, allowing us to focusesmurces
on portfolio collections. Under a typical portfolmrchase agreement, the seller refunds the parfithe purchase
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price attributable to the returned accounts onveedi replacement receivables to us. Occasionadiywill acquire a
well-seasoned or older portfolio at a reduced piicm a seller that is unable to meet all of ourchasing criteria.
When we acquire such portfolios, the purchase psiferther discounted beyond the typical discourgsreceive o
the portfolios we purchase.

VATIV, our wholly-owned subsidiary located in Sudaand, Texas, provides bankruptcy and deceasediatco
servicing. VATIV provides us with internal expergmand proprietary systems in support of serviomgown
bankruptcy and deceased accounts, while also afifprgs the opportunity to enter new markets foruggitjons in
the bankruptcy and deceased account fields.

Receivable Servicing

Our objective is to maximize our return on investinen acquired consumer receivable portfolios. Assalt,
before acquiring a portfolio, we analyze the pditfto determine how to best maximize collectionsiicost
efficient manner and decide whether to use a théndy collection agency or an attorney.

If we are successful in acquiring the portfolio, @& promptly process the receivables that werehased and
commence the collection process. Unlike colleciigencies that typically have only a specified peabtime to
recover a receivable, as the portfolio owners, aselsignificantly more flexibility and can estahligayment
programs.

We presently outsource a significant amount ofreaeivable servicing to third-party collection ages and
attorneys. Our senior management typically deteemthe appropriate third-party collection agenay attorney
based on the type of receivables purchased. Ogoeup of receivables is sent to a third-party eitaen agency or
attorney, our management actively monitors ancergsithe third-party collection agency’s and attgiae
performance on an ongoing basis. Our managemegit/escdetailed analyses, including collection aistignd
portfolio performance, from our internal servicidgpartments for the purpose of evaluating the tesiithe efforts
of the thirdparty collection agencies and attorneys. Basedoatfigtio performance guidelines, our managemenit
reassign certain receivables from one third-pastiection agency or attorney to another if we badisuch change
will enhance collections.

At September 30, 2010 approximately 36% of ourfpbos were serviced by five collection organizatio We
have servicing agreements in place with theseddlection organizations as well as all other thpatty collection
agencies and attorneys. These servicing agreemaves standard contingency fees and servicingeatitounts.

Operations

The Operations servicing division consists of thiéofving units:

Collections

The Collection Department is responsible for making receiving contact with and from consumerstier
purpose of collecting upon the accounts containeslir consumer receivables portfolios. Collectitforés are
specific to accounts that are not yet being sedvineour network of external agencies and attornélye Collection
Department uses a friendly, customer service agprtacollect on receivables and utilizes colletsoftware, a
dialer and telephone system to accomplish this. ¢g&sdh collector is responsible for:

« Initiating outbound collection calls and handlimg@ming calls from the consumer. If a call is reedifor ar
account that has already been outsourced to aceerthe collector relays the corresponding contact
information and directs the customer to call theiser directly.

« Identifying the debt and iterating the benefitpafing the obligatior

« Working with the customer to develop accepabkans of satisfying the obligation. The Collattio
Department (and our third party network of senggédras the ability to tailor repayment plans that
accommodate the situation of the obligor by corméidecomponents including their monthly budgets and
employment statu:
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« Offering (if necessary and based upon the indiMiditaation) an obligor a discount on the overdlligation.

Additionally, the Collection Department utilizeseries of collection letters, late payment remindard
settlement offers that are sent out at specifieriatls or at the request of a member of the Cadleddepartment.

If the Collection Department cannot contact the@uer by either telephone or mail, the accounkig saced
through an automated process to obtain the moshteontact information for the debtor. This pracesploys
usage of data supplied by a variety of third pdatabases. Once new contact information is obtathedaccount is
referred back to the Collections Department antéctibn activity is once again initiated.

Other members of the collection department areoresiple for:

« Coordinating customer inquiries and assisting thikection agencies in their processes, if nee

« Handling the repurchase process of ineligdgleounts received from a Seller that may be include
purchased portfolic

* Working with Buyers during the transition perioddguos-sale proces:
« Handling any issues that may arise once a purchasedsable portfolio is sol

* Reading incoming correspondence for accounaisare currently assigned to the Collection Depernt,
ensuring the account is handled properly, takimgititial action required and forwarding to a cotte
manager for follow up actiol

Media

The Media Department is responsible for obtaingtgring and tracking the requests and subsequesipteof
‘back-up’ documents associated with specific accounts. Tesements are usually requested from the sellehg
purpose of substantiating the debt if the debtsputed by the consumer or is requested by out tgartment.
The Media Department is also responsible for reitiogcand tracking expenses incurred by the aforgeed
document requests and ensuring invoices are hatidlety and any errors are corrected.

Disputes

The function of the dispute department is to hamadhe dispute received via mail, electronically elephone.
Once a dispute is communicated, the account isvechfsom the credit reports or reported as a despovestigate:
and resolution is obtained.

Correspondence

The purpose of the correspondence departmentéview, document and scan into the system anyesritt
correspondence related to our accounts. The emgdaye also required to notify the Department torwlthe
correspondence is intended to ensure approprititmas initiated.

Accounting and Finance
In addition to the customary accounting activitibg Accounting and Finance Department is respta§il:
« Making daily deposits of debtor paymer
« Posting payments to debt’ accounts
« Providing senior management with daily, weekly amzhthly receivable activity and performance repc

Accounting and finance employees assist colledigmartment employees in handling customer disputes
relating to payment and balance information anddhiag the repurchase requests from companies tonwie have
sold receivables. Additionally, the Accounting Depgnt reviews the results of the collection of samer
receivable portfolios that are being serviced brdtparty collection agencies and attorneys.
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Collections Represented by Account Sale

Certain collections represent account sales tar atblet buyers to help maximize revenue and castsfloVe
believe that our business model of not having gdlamumber of collectors, coupled with a legal sggtwhich is
focused on attempting to perfect liens and judgsiagginst obligors, allows us the flexibility tdlsecounts at
prices that are attractive to us, and, just as mapg, sell the less desirable accounts withinamliection portfolios.
There are many factors that contribute to the dmtias to which receivable to sell and which to/gey, including:

« the age of the receivabl
« the status of the receival— whether paying or nc-paying; anc
« the selling price

Net collections represented by account sales #fisical years ended September 30, 2010, 2009 G0Rl\Rere
$3.5 million, $8.7 million and $20.4 million, resgively. Collections represented by account sades percentage
total collections for the fiscal years ended Sefen30, 2010, 2009 and 2008 were 3.4%, 5.9% artd,9.8
respectively.

Marketing

We have established relationships with brokers miladket consumer receivable portfolios from banksrfce
companies and other credit providers. In additiba,Company subscribes to national publicationslistaconsume
receivable portfolios for sale. We also directiyntaxts banks, finance companies or other creditigeos to solicit
consumer receivables for sale.

Competition

Our business of purchasing distressed consumeradtes is highly competitive and fragmented, ared w
expect that competition from new and existing conigawill continue. We compete with:

« other purchasers of consumer receivables, incluttind-party collection companies; a
« other financial services companies who purchasswer receivable:

Some of our competitors are larger and more estaddi and may have substantially greater financial,
technological, personnel and other resources thhave, including greater access to the creditapidal markets.
We believe that no individual competitor or grodfcompetitors has a dominant presence in the market

We compete in the marketplace for consumer reclvadrtfolios based on many factors, including:

 purchase price

 representations, warranties and indemnities regdg
« timeliness of purchase decisions; :

* reputation.

Our strategy is designed to capitalize on the markack of a dominant industry player. We beli¢kat our
management’s experience and expertise in idengfy@maluating, pricing and acquiring consumer resiglie
portfolios and managing collections, coupled witin strategic alliances with third-party collectiagencies and
attorneys and our sources of financing, give usmpetitive advantage. However, we cannot assutenthavill be
able to compete successfully against current aréutompetitors or that competition will not incsedn the future.

Seasonality and Trends

Our management believes that our operations masgrtee extent, be affected by high delinquency ratelsby
lower recoveries on consumer receivables acquaetiquidation during or shortly following certaholiday period:
and during the summer months. In addition, on dooathe market for acquiring distressed receivables

10
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does become more competitive thereby possibly déhiing our ability to acquire such distressed reslglies at
attractive prices in such periods.

Technology

We believe that a high degree of automation is sy to enable us to grow and successfully convpitte
other finance companies. Accordingly, we continudbk to upgrade our technology systems to suppert
servicing and recovery of consumer receivablesiaeddor liquidation. Our telecommunications andheology
systems allow us to quickly and accurately protage amounts of data necessary to purchase avideser
consumer receivable portfolios. In addition, we/ r@h the information technology of our third-paciyllection
agencies and attorneys and periodically review #etems to ensure that they can adequately settvicconsumer
receivable portfolios outsourced to them.

Due to our desire to increase productivity throagtomation, we periodically review our systemsgfossible
upgrades and enhancements.

Government Regulation

On July 21, 2010, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refarrd Protection Act, or the Dodd-Frank Act, wasotea.
There are significant corporate governance anduxeccompensation-related provisions in the Dodalnk Act
that require the SEC to adopt additional rulesragdilations in these areas such as corporate govesn“say on
pay” and proxy access. Our efforts to comply withste requirements have resulted in, and are lthetpntinue to
result in, an increase in expenses and a diveof§iomanagemens’ time from other business activities. We are s
to changing rules and regulations of federal aattgjovernments as well as the stock exchange awhr
common stock is listed. These entities, includimg Public Company Accounting Oversight Board, tRB€%nd the
NASDAQ Global Market, have issued a significant tmemof new and increasingly complex requirements
regulations over the course of the last severaisyaad continue to develop additional regulatiams requirements
in response to laws enacted by Congress.

Our business is subject to extensive federal aaté ségulations. The relationship of a consumeraaoekditor
is extensively regulated by federal, state andlliawes, rules, regulations and ordinances. Thess laclude, but al
not limited to, the following federal statutes aedulations: the Federal Truth-In-Lending Act, Eaér Credit
Billing Act, the Equal Credit Opportunity Act anklet Fair Credit Reporting Act, as well as comparakd¢utes in
states where consumers reside and/or where crediteocated. Among other things, the laws andlagigns
applicable to various creditors impose disclosermpirements regarding the advertisement, applicatio
establishment and operation of credit card accoamtgher types of credit programs. Federal lawires a creditor
to disclose to consumers, among other things nieedst rates, fees, grace periods and balancglaigdn methods
associated with their accounts. In addition, corengnare entitled to have payments and creditsegpi their
accounts promptly, to receive prescribed noticektarrequest that billing errors be resolved prdynph addition,
some laws prohibit certain discriminatory practicesonnection with the extension of credit. Furttstate laws
may limit the interest rate and the fees that dittemay impose on consumers. Failure by the tweslio comply
with applicable laws could create claims and rigiftsffset by consumers that would reduce or elatértheir
obligations, which could have a material adversectn our operations. Pursuant to agreementsruvitieh we
purchase receivables, we are typically indemniéigdinst losses resulting from the failure of treditor to have
complied with applicable laws relating to the reedies prior to our purchase of such receivables.

Certain laws, including the laws described abovay fimit our ability to collect amounts owing withspect to
the receivables regardless of any act or omissioous part. For example, under the Federal FaidiCBilling Act,
a credit card issuer may be subject to certaimdaind defenses arising out of certain transactionhich a credit
card is used if the consumer has made a gooddtémpt to obtain satisfactory resolution of a peabrelative to
the transaction and, except in cases where therspecified relationship between the person hagdtie card and
the credit card issuer, the amount of the initiahsaction exceeds $50 and the place where tlied inénsaction
occurred was in the same state as the consuméing lsiddress or within 100 miles of that addreésscordingly, as
a purchaser of defaulted receivables, we may pescheceivables subject to valid defenses on thieopére
consumer. Other laws provide that, in certain ims¢s, consumers cannot be held liable for, or their
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liability is limited to $50 with respect to, chagy® the credit card credit account that were alre$ an
unauthorized use of the credit card account. Norasses can be given that certain of the receigalére not
established as a result of unauthorized use ddditarard account, and, accordingly, the amousuech receivables
may not be collectible by us.

Several federal, state and local laws, rules, egguls and ordinances, including, but not limitedthe Federal
Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (“FDCPA&nd the Federal Trade Commission Act and compasthte statute
regulate consumer debt collection activity. Althbutpr a variety of reasons, we may not be spatlficsubject to
the FDCPA or certain state statutes that goverd-gharty debt collectors, it is our policy to complith applicable
laws in our collection activities. Additionally, othird-party collection agencies and attorneys in@yubject to
these laws. To the extent that some or all of thess apply to our collection activities or ourrthiparty collection
agencies’ and attorneys’ collection activities|uige to comply with such laws could have a mateathlerse effect
on us.

In order to comply with the forging laws and redigas, we provide a comprehensive developmentitrgin
program for our new collection/dispute departmeptesentatives and on-going training for all cditeddispute
department associates. All collection and dispepeasentatives are tested annually on their knayeled the
FDCPA and other applicable laws. Account repredeimnot achieving our minimum standards are megluto
complete a FDCPA review session and are then eetelst addition, annual supplemental instructiothen FDCPA
and collection techniques is provided to all owrcamt representatives.

The enactment of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refanth Consumer Protection Act will subject us to
substantial additional federal regulation, and wenot predict the effect of such regulation onluusiness, results
of operations, cash flows or financial conditiondaovernment regulations may limit our abilityrézover and
enforce the collection of our receivables. Addiiblaws or amendments to existing laws, may betedabat could
impose additional restrictions on the servicing aalliection of receivables. Such new laws or amesmisimay
adversely affect our ability to collect the recdiles.

We currently hold a number of licenses issued uageficable consumer credit laws or other licensitagutes
or regulations. Certain of our current licensegl any licenses that we may be required to obtatherfuture, may
be subject to periodic renewal provisions and/beptequirements. Our inability to renew licensedake any
other required action with respect to such licermsesdd have a material adverse effect upon ourtsestioperation
and financial condition.

Employees

As of September 30, 2010, we had 102 full-time exygés. We are not a party to any collective barggin
agreements.

Our web address is www.astafunding.co@opies of our Form 10-Ks, 10-Qs, 8-Ks, amendm#meeto, and
otheradditional information reports which we file with or furnish to the SE@e available on our website as soon
as reasonably practical after filing electronicailigh the SEC. No part of the Asta Funding, Inchveée is
incorporated by reference into this report.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Note Regarding Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the risk factors beio evaluating the Company. In addition to thédiwing
risks, there may also be risks that we do not getkof or that we currently think are immateriahtimay also
impair our business operations. If any of the failog risks occur, our business, results of operatio financial
condition could be adversely affected, the traginge of our common stock could decline and shddsre might
lose all or part of their investment. The risk farst presented below are those which we currenthsioer material.
However, they are not the only risks facing our pany. Additional risks not presently known to usybich we
currently consider immaterial, may also adversdfget us. There may be risks that a particular Btoe views
differently from us, and our analysis might be wgoli any of the risks that we face actually ocaurt business,
financial condition and operating results couldinaterially adversely affected and could differ miadéy from
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any possible results suggested by any forward-fapktatements that we have made or might makecincase,
the trading price of our common stock could deglared you could lose part or all of your investmeétkcept as
required by law, we expressly disclaim any obligatio update or revise any forward-looking statetaen

The enactment of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refoand Consumer Protection Act will subject us to
substantial additional federal regulation, and wauenot predict the effect of such regulation on obusiness,
results of operations, cash flows or financial coitidn.

On July 21, 2010, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refarrd Protection Act, or the Dodd-Frank Act, wasotea.
There are significant corporate governance andwxeccompensation-related provisions in the Dodalnk Act
that require the SEC to adopt additional rulesragdilations in these areas such as “say on paypeny access.
Our efforts to comply with these requirements hagilted in, and are likely to continue to resmtan increase in
expenses and a diversion of management’s time étber business activities.

Given the uncertainty associated with the mannarhich the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act will be
implemented by the various regulatory agenciesthraligh regulations, the full extent of the impsath
requirements will have on our operations is uncl&ae changes resulting from the Dodd-Frank Act ingyact the
profitability of business activities, require chasgo certain business practices, or otherwiseradiyeaffect our
business. In particular, the potential impact &f frodd-Frank Act on our operations and activitiEgh currently
and prospectively, include, among others:

* increased cost of operations due to greatedaéory oversight, supervision and compliance withsumer
debt issuance and collection practic

« the limitation on the ability to expand consmproduct and service offerings due to anticipateidter
consumer protection laws and regulatic

The Act establishes a Bureau of Consumer FinaRe@tection (the “Bureau”) that will assume broad
regulatory powers over debt collectors and virfuall other “covered persons” who have any conoectd
consumer financial products or services. The Bureilthave exclusive rule-making authority with pest to all
significant federal statutes that impact the caitecindustry, including the FDCPA, the Fair CreRieporting Act
(“FCRA"), and others. This means, for example, thatBureau will have the ability to pass rules esgllations
that interpret any of the provisions of the FDCIpatentially impacting all facets of the collectiohannel. Federal
agencies, including the Bureau, will have beenmsignificant discretion in drafting the rules aegulations that
will implement the Dodd-Frank Act. Consequently,nm®f the details and much of the impact of the ®&dank
Act may not be known for some time. In additions tlegislation mandated multiple studies and repfut
Congress, which could result in additional legiskabr regulatory action.

At this time, it is not possible or practical toeshpt to provide a comprehensive analysis of hagemew laws
and regulations will impact debt collectors. Thi éxtent of that impact probably will not be knovier a year or
more, when the Bureau begins to implement regulatio

We expect that we will be required to invest sigaift management attention and resources to eeadunak
make any changes to our policies and proceduressgary to comply with new statutory and regulatory
requirements under the Dodd-Frank Act, which mayatigely impact results of operations and financ@hdition.
We cannot predict the requirements of the regulatidtimately adopted under the Dodd-Frank Act,afiect such
regulations will have on financial markets gengradlr on our businesses specifically, the additieoats associated
with compliance with such regulations, or any clemg our operations that may be necessary to gowifii the
Dodd-Frank Act, any of which could have a matesidderse affect on our business, results of opersticash flows
or financial condition.

Government regulations may limit our ability to reger and enforce the collection of our receivables.

Federal, state and local laws, rules, regulatiomsaadinances may limit our ability to recover adorce our
rights with respect to the receivables acquiredidyThese laws include, but are not limited to féllewing federal
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statutes and regulations promulgated thereundecamgbarable statutes in states where consumedgeresi
and/or where creditors are located:

» The Fair Debt Collection Practices A

* The Federal Trade Commission A

e TheTruth-In-LendingAct;

» The Fair Credit Billing Act

« The Equal Credit Opportunity Ac

« The Fair Credit Reporting Ac

» The Dod«-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection
« The Financial Privacy Ruls

* The Safeguards Rul

» Telephone Consumer Protection A

« Health Insurance Portability and Accountapifict (“HIPAA”)/Health Information Technology for
Economical and Clinical Health AC*HITECH");

< U.S. Bankruptcy Code; ar
« Credit Card Accountability Responsibility and Disslire Act of 200¢

We may be precluded from collecting receivablepwechase where the creditor or other previous owner
third-party collection agency or attorney failecctumply with applicable law in originating or serivig such
acquired receivables. Laws relating to the coltathf consumer debt also directly apply to our bess. Our failure
to comply with any laws applicable to us, includstgte licensing laws, could limit our ability tecover on
receivables and could subject us to fines and iesaWhich could reduce our earnings and resudt diefault under
our loan arrangements. In addition, our third-padifection agencies and attorneys may be subjettistse and
other laws and their failure to comply with suctvéacould also materially adversely affect our fiomincome and
earnings.

Additional laws or amendments to existing laws rbayenacted that could impose additional restristimm the
servicing and collection of receivables. Such nawsl or amendments may adversely affect the albditollect on
our receivables, which could also adversely affectfinance income and earnings.

Because our receivables are generally originatddsarviced pursuant to a variety of federal, dtates
and/or local laws by a variety of entities and nrayolve consumers in all 50 states, the Distric€ofumbia, Puerto
Rico and South America, there can be no assuraatall originating and servicing entities havealatimes, been
in substantial compliance with applicable law. Adwhally, there can be no assurance that we othord-party
collection agencies and attorneys have been orcwasitinue to be at all times in substantial comul@with
applicable law. Failure to comply with applicabdevi could materially adversely affect our abilityctmllect our
receivables and could subject us to increased,dosts and penalties.

The current economic environment has slowed ourlapito collect from our debtors.

The recent worldwide financial turmoil has adveyssfected all businesses, including our own. Tineent
collection environment is particularly challengiag a result of factors in the economy over whichhaee no
control. These factors include:

* aslowdown in the econom
» severe problems in the credit and housing mar

 higher unemploymen
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* reductions in consumer spendil
< changes in the underwriting criteria by originat@nsd
« changes in laws and regulations governing consleneling and the related collectiol

Our litigation strategy is highly dependent on ahility to locate debtors with jobs and/or homes Bélieve
that our debtors are straining to pay their oblayet owed to us. Higher unemployment rates padityimpact our
debtors’ ability to pay obligations and our abilityget wage executions as a source of paymentldPns in the
credit markets and lower home values have redutedhility of our debtors to secure financing tlglosecond
mortgages and home equity lines to pay obligatemed to us. A continuation of the current probléemthe credit
and housing markets and general slowdown in thaaog will continue to adversely affect the effeetiess of our
litigation strategy, and the value of our portfsliand our financial performance.

We may not be able to purchase consumer receivablgfolios at favorable prices or on sufficienthaforable
terms or at all.

Our success depends upon the continued availabilitpnsumer receivable portfolios that meet ouchpasing
criteria and our ability to identify and financesthurchases of such portfolios. The availabilitgofisumer
receivable portfolios at favorable prices and amteacceptable to us depends on a number of famitsile of our
control, including:

« the growth in consumer del

the volume of consumer receivable portfolios avdddor sale

availability of financing to fund purchase

competitive factors affecting potential purchaserd sellers of consumer receivable portfolios;

possible future changes in the bankruptcy Jatege laws and homestead acts which could makeri
difficult for us to collect.

Our future operating results will be negatively irapted as we have not replaced our defaulted consume
receivables at historic levels.

To operate profitably, we must continually acqursufficient amount of distressed consumer recéieaio
generate continued revenue. Our buying activitietnd fiscal year 2010, 2009 and the last threetgusof fiscal
year 2008 slowed dramatically. As the economic mmvnent deteriorated, we felt that pricing of politis had no
fallen enough to offset the decline in ultimatelections. Accordingly, our purchases of receivalile2010 were
$8.0 million, compared to $19.6 million in 2009 &B.9 million in 2008. In part, this led to ourtwash
collections in fiscal 2010 decreasing $45.5 million30.9% from $147.4 million in fiscal year 20@8
$101.9 million in fiscal year 2010. Further, of fleocollections$34.3 million for fiscal year 201$40.7 million for
fiscal year 2009 and $45.3 million for fiscal petid008 came from zero basis portfolios (whose aagryalue has
been reduced to zero). Our decreased level of guyémv portfolios during 2010, 2009 and 2008 wiEly result in
future reduced net cash collections in 2011 and ghe@ growth of our future revenues and operatasylts.
Furthermore, we cannot predict how our abilitydentify and purchase receivables, and evaluatquhlity of thos:
receivables, would be affected if there is a shiftonsumer lending practices whether caused bygd®in
regulations or by a sustained economic downturn.

Our inability to purchase sufficient quantities akceivables portfolios may necessitate workforcduetions,
which may harm our business.

Because fixed costs, such as personnel costs,tobamst significant portion of our overhead, we nhay
required to reduce the number of employees if waaaontinually purchase receivables acquiredidmidation.
Reducing the number of employees can affect ounbas adversely and lead to:

» lower employee morale, higher employee attritidesaand fewer experienced employe¢
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« disruptions in our operations and loss of efficieiccollection functions
« excess costs associated with unused space intamtidacilities; anc
« further reliance on our third party collection ages and attorney

We have seen at certain times that the market fogairing consumer receivable portfolios has becomere
competitive, thereby diminishing from time to tinoair ability to acquire such receivables at prices are
willing to pay.

The growth in consumer debt may also be affected by

+ the continuation of a slowdown in the econol
 continuation of the problems in the credit and lhoyisnarkets
* reductions in consumer spendi

« changes in the underwriting criteria by originat@sd

» changes in laws and regulations governing consieneing.

Any slowing of the consumer debt growth trend caelsult in a decrease in the availability of consum
receivable portfolios for purchase that could &ftee purchase prices of such portfolios. Any iaseein the prices
we are required to pay for such portfolios, in tumil reduce the profit we generate from such fodids.

We have risks associated with our purchase of $ilBon in face value of receivables purchased for
$300 million in March 2007 (the “Portfolio Purchasg which has not met our expectations and has andyn
continue to adversely impact our financial positiand results of operations.

Since the inception of the Portfolio Purchase foethby the Receivables Financing Agreement, theiRalle:
Financing Agreement has been modified four timestdwcollections not meeting our expectations. FPoefolio
Purchase has not met our expectations, and thdalhbas been exacerbated by the general econdown turn.
We have recorded impairments on the Portfolio Pasehotaling $97.2 million ($30.3 million in fiscgdar 2008,
$53.9 million in fiscal year 2009, and $13.0 mitiim fiscal year 2010). The Portfolio Purchase tassferred to
the cost recovery method effective with the thioduder of fiscal year 2008, as collections becamesiasingly mor
difficult to predict. Accordingly, we will recognéfinance income only after we recover the carryialgie of the
asset. As a result, finance income since AprildD&has been and will continue to be negativelyaictgd. There
can be no assurance as to when or if the currenficg value will be recovered. Further, all castiections from
the Portfolio Purchase are used to repay our logenuthe Receivable Financing Agreement.

There is no assurance that we will realize the fulllue of the deferred tax asset.

Although the carry forward period for income taiesp to twenty years, such allowance period isideta
reasonable period to forecast full realizationhaf tleferred tax asset. We continually monitor faseformation tc
ensure the valuation allowance is appropriate.

With portfolios classified under the interest metthoour projections of future cash flows from our pifolio
purchases may prove to be inaccurate, which cowgult in reduced revenues or the recording of impaéent
charges if we do not achieve the collections forsteal by our model.

We use qualitative and quantitative analyses tgeptduture cash flows from our portfolio purchasgkere ca
be no assurance, however, that we will be ablehdese the collections forecasted by our analysise are not
able to achieve these levels of forecasted cotlastiour revenues will be reduced and we may hanestjto record
additional impairment charges, which would resuldireduction of our earnings. We recorded impaitebarges
of $13.0 million, $183.5 million, and $53.2 for tiiears ended September 30, 2010, 2009 and 20@@ctasely.
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We use estimates for recognizing finance incomeaoportion of our consumer receivables acquired
liquidation and our earnings would be reduced if ta@l results are less than estimated.

We utilize the interest method of revenue recognifor determining a portion of our finance income
recognized, which is based on projected cash ftbbasmay prove to be less than anticipated andddeald to
reductions in revenue or additional impairment gearunder Financial Accounting Standards Board S§BA
Accounting Standard Codification (“ASC”) 310, Rea#bles — Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with
Deteriorated Credit Quality (“ASC 310"). Static peof accounts are established. These pools aregagd based
on certain common risk criteria. Each static psakicorded at cost and is accounted for as a simgfiéor the
recognition of income, principal payments, and lpssvision. Once a static pool is established fquarter,
individual receivable accounts are not added tqtiw (unless replaced by the seller) or removerthfthe pool
(unless sold or returned to the seller). ASC 3Hfuires that the excess of the contractual cashsflover expected
cash flows not be recognized as an adjustmentveftee or expense or on the balance sheet. ASOnRiElly
freezes the internal rate of return (“IRR”), estisthwhen the accounts receivable are purchaséle dmsis for
subsequent impairment testing. Significant incredsectual, or expected future cash flows mayelsegnized
prospectively through an upward adjustment of B bver a portfolio’s remaining life. Any increasethe IRR
then becomes the new benchmark for impairmenngsRather than lowering the estimated IRR, ifdbkection
estimates are not received or projected to bewvedethe carrying value of a pool would be writtkswn to maintai
the then current IRR. Any reduction in our earnirggulting from such a write down could materiatjversely
affect our stock price.

As the mix of our portfolios has shifted to the ¢aecovery method, there is a negative impact orafice
income as no finance income is recognized on thstaecovery portfolios until the carrying value hdeen
recovered.

Historically, we have utilized the interest methiodecognize finance income on most consumer rabésv
portfolios purchased. As the economy has impacatedosiness, making collections more unpredictaléehave
transferred portfolios from the interest methodhi® cost recovery method, which delays the recmgndf finance
income until the carrying value has been fully remed.

We may not be able to collect sufficient amountsaur consumer receivable portfolios to recover thests
associated with the purchase of those portfolioglan fund our operations.

We acquire and collect on consumer receivable glavt that contain charged-off, semi-performingd an
performing receivables. In order to operate prbfitaver the long term, we must continually purehasd collect
on a sufficient volume of receivables to generatenue that exceeds our purchase costs. For asdbiantare
charged-off or semi-performing, the originatorsraerim owners of the receivables generally have:

* made numerous attempts to collect on thesgathins, often using both their in-house collectaaff and
third-party collection agencies; ai

« subsequently deemed these obligations as uncolie

These receivable portfolios are purchased at sggmf discounts to the amount the consumers owesdh
receivables are difficult to collect and actualoeeries may vary and be less than the amount esgbelet addition,
our collections may worsen in a weak economic cyle may not recover amounts in excess of our aitgpn and
servicing costs.

Our ability to recover the purchase costs on outf@iids and produce sufficient returns can be tiegly
impacted by the quality of the purchased receivabfethe normal course of our portfolio acquisispsome
receivables may be included in the portfolios fhdtto conform to certain terms of the purchaseagents and we
may seek to return these receivables to the deligrayment or replacement receivables. Howevercavmot
guarantee that any of such sellers will be abla¢et their payment obligations to us. Accounts Watre unable 1
return to sellers may yield no return. If cash ffofrom operations are less than anticipated asudtref our inability
to collect sufficient amounts on our receivablas, ability to satisfy our debt obligations, purcea®w portfolios,
and achieve future growth and profitability mayrbaterially adversely affected.
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We are subject to competition for the purchase ohsumer receivable portfolios which could result @m
increase in the prices of such portfolios.

We compete with other purchasers of consumer rab&vportfolios, with third-party collection ageesiand
with financial services companies that manage th&it consumer receivable portfolios. We competé¢herbasis o
price, reputation, industry experience and perforteaSome of our competitors have greater capigasonnel and
other resources than we have. The possible entmgwfcompetitors, including competitors that histally have
focused on the acquisition of different asset types the expected increase in competition fromectirmarket
participants may reduce our access to consumeivadte portfolios. Aggressive pricing by our conipats has
raised the price of consumer receivable portfadibsve levels that we are willing to pay, which ecbréduce the
number of consumer receivable portfolios suitableus to purchase or if purchased by us, reducpritfés, if any,
generated by such portfolios. If we are unableueipase receivable portfolios at favorable priaeatall, our
finance income and earnings could be materialluced.

We are dependent upon third parties who we do mtteol to service a significant portion of our conser
receivable portfolios. The loss of certain serviserould have a material adverse effect on our firtgad position
and results of operation.

Although we utilize our in-house collection stadfihitiate the collection process to collect sorhewr
receivables, we outsource a majority of our redd&vaervicing. As a result, we are dependent uperefforts of ot
third party collection agencies and attorneys twise and collect our consumer receivables. Anlgfaiby our thirc
party collection agencies and attorneys to adetyupézform collection services for us or remit sudilections to
us could materially reduce our finance income amdpoofitability. In addition, our finance incomead profitability
could be materially adversely affected if we aréatile to secure replacement third party collecéigancies and
attorneys and redirect payments from the debtoositanew third party collection agencies and atgsnpromptly it
the event our agreements with our third party ctike agencies and attorneys are terminated, dnaf plarty
collection agencies and attorneys fail to adequateiform their obligations or if our relationshiwgh such third
party collection agencies and attorneys adverdenge. As 36% of our portfolios are serviced b fiv
organizations, we are dependent on their effortaaimize collections.

The current economic environment has had adversieefs on others in this industry; certain third ptaes
providing services to us have filed for bankruptpyotection which has delayed collections.

The current economic environment has had an adedfieset on others in our industry. One of our fimest
significant third party servicers filed a bankrupfroceeding and has been liquidated. We took tecideps in that
servicer’s bankruptcy proceeding and with permissibthe bankruptcy courts, moved all debtor act®tmother
third party collection unit. with whom we have erpace. In addition, a law firm used by the bankrsgrvicer also
filed for bankruptcy and has closed. All accoursivieed by this law firm have also been transfetesimilar third
party collection units. The replacement servicdl vé taking steps to arrange for the substitugbonounsel.
Notwithstanding the efforts of various parties toypde for a conversion of the accounts to the sewicer, thes
occurrences could interfere with the collectiorceftain of our portfolios including the ability pfdgment debtors
identify the Company, the new servicer or new ceuas the parties to whom they should direct paymén
addition, representatives of creditors of the inent servicer and troubled law firm may endeavagsert claims
with respect to portfolios that those companiemaelish including our accounts.

We rely on our third party collectors to comply Wil rules and regulations and maintain proper iatnal
controls over their accounting and operations.

Because the receivables were originated and serpigesuant to a variety of federal and/or stateslawa
variety of entities and involved consumers in @lisates, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico &adith America,
there can be no assurance that all original senyientities have, at all times, been in substantiedpliance with
applicable law. Additionally, there can be no aasge that we or our third-party collection ageneied attorneys
have been or will continue to be at all times ibstantial compliance with applicable law. The feglto comply
with applicable law and not maintain proper corgtriol their accounting and operations could matgradversely
affect our ability to collect our receivables amliltl subject us to increased costs, fines and pesal
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We may rely on third parties to locate, identify dievaluate consumer receivable portfolios availafide
purchase.

We may rely on third parties, including brokers ainidd-party collection agencies and attorneysdemtify
consumer receivable portfolios and, in some ingano assist us in our evaluation and purcha#ieest portfolios.
As a result, if such third parties fail to identifgceivable portfolios or if our relationships withch third parties are
not maintained, our ability to identify and purchaslditional receivable portfolios could be matbriadversely
affected. In addition, if we, or such parties, failcorrectly or adequately evaluate the valueotiectability of these
consumer receivable portfolios, we may pay too nfoctsuch portfolios and suffer an impairment, vitweould
negatively impact our earnings.

We have an ongoing dispute with a significant seei for which we are currently negotiating a setthent.

We have an ongoing dispute with one of our sigaifichird party servicers regarding certain prarisiin the
servicing agreement. We contend that there are ataalue to us under a profit-sharing arrangemer. servicer
has acknowledged the profit sharing arrangemendisagrees with the calculation of the amount owed.
Additionally, the servicer has asserted that we thweservicer certain amounts with regard to afplostsale and
court costs allegedly incurred by the servicer moidpaid to the servicer by us. We continue to tiatpa settleme
for these items and we continue to work with tles/cer and receive collections from them. We dbbadieve the
final settlement will have an adverse material @ffen the Company.

Our collections may decrease if bankruptcy filinggrease.

During times of economic recession, the amounteddudted consumer receivables generally increagssh
contributes to an increase in the amount of petdmarakruptcy filings. Under certain bankruptcyritjs, a debtor’s
assets are sold to repay credit originators, maesihe defaulted consumer receivables we purcrasgenerally
unsecured, we may not be able to collect on theseivables. We cannot assure you that our colleetiperience
would not decline with an increase in bankrupttings. If our actual collection experience withpest to a
defaulted consumer receivable portfolio is sigaifity lower than we projected when we purchasegtirtolio,
our earnings could be negatively affected.

The loss of any of our executive officers may adsaly affect our operations and our ability to susstully
acquire receivable portfolios.

Gary Stern, our Chairman, President and Chief BikexOfficer, Robert J. Michel, our Chief Financtafficer,
and Mary Curtin, our Senior Vice President, ar@oesible for making substantially all managemenisiens,
including determining which portfolios to purchatiee purchase price and other material terms df poctfolio
acquisitions. These decisions are instrumentdid¢sticcess of our business. As of January 200BuAS8tern,
former Chairman of the Board of Directors, now Chm@in Emeritus, stepped down as an employee of dhep@ny.
Mr. Stern continues to serve on the Board and dtswith our executives. Significant losses of #eevices of our
executive officers or the inability to replace afficers with individuals who have experience ie thdustry or witt
the Company could disrupt our operations and aéWeedfect our ability to successfully acquire reable
portfolios.

The Stern family effectively controls the Comparsybstantially reducing the influence of our other
stockholders.

Members of the Stern family including Arthur Ste@ary Stern and Barbara Marburger, daughter ofukrth
Stern and sister of Gary Stern, trusts or custadiabunts for the benefit of a minor child of G&tgrn, Asta Groug
Incorporated, and limited liability companies cafizd by Judith R. Feder, niece of Arthur Stern aadsin of Gary
Stern, in which Arthur Stern, Alice Stern (wife Afthur Stern and mother of Gary Stern and Barbasalidrger),
Gary Stern and trusts for the benefit of the igsfugrthur Stern and the issue of Gary Stern hold al
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economic interests, own, in the aggregate, apprabaiy 26.7% of our outstanding shares of commockstas a
result, the Stern family is able to influence sfguaintly the actions that require stockholder apptpincluding:

« the election of a majority of our directors; &

« the approval of mergers, sales of assetshar @orporate transactions or matters submittedttmkholder
approval.

As a result, our other stockholders may have redliduence over matters submitted for stockhokgproval.
In addition, the Stern familg’influence could preclude any unsolicited acqoisibf us and consequently materie
adversely affect the price of our common stock.

Current economic conditions have had a significantipact on our ability to sell accounts.

As part of our historic business model, we havd sgkounts on an opportunistic basis. Our abiditgell
accounts has been limited in 2010 and 2009 andimdiynited in the future. Net collections represehby account
sales for 2010 were only $3.5 million, compare&&o7 million and $20.4 million in 2009 and 2008pectively.
Collections represented by account sales as argageeof total collections were 3.4% in 2010, coragdo 5.9%
and 9.8% in 2009 and 2008, respectively. We hadclaed a sales effort to enhance cash flow and ehy d
particularly from the Portfolio Purchase, but sdlase been slower than expected due to a varidgctdrs,
including a slow resale market, similar to the dase in pricing we are seeing in general, as wdHiek of
supporting documentation (media) and validatiothefPortfolio Purchase accounts.

An unfavorable government review of our tax returieeuld adversely affect our operating results.

Our tax filings are subject to review or audit hg RS and state and local taxing authorities. pnil2010, we
received notification from the IRS that our 2008l 2009 federal income tax returns will be audifBuis audit is
currently in progress. The IRS examinations offederal tax returns could result in significantpoeed
adjustments. Although we believe our tax estimategeasonable, we can provide no assurance thdinah
determination in an audit will not be materiallyfdient than the treatment reflected in our hist@rincome tax
provisions and accruals. An assessment of addittaras as a result of an audit could adverselgcatur income
tax provision and net income in the period or pdsifor which that determination is made.

Negative press regarding the debt collection indyghay have a negative impact on a debtor’s willivess to
pay the debt we acquire.

Consumers are exposed to information from a nurmbsources that may cause them to be more reludant
pay their debts or to pursue legal actions agaissOn-line, print and other media publish stoabsut the debt
collection industry which cite specific examplesablusive collection practices. These stories cad fe the rapid
dissemination of the story, adding to the leveéxjposure to negative publicity about our indus#grious Internet
sites are maintained where consumers can list tbeicerns about the activities of debt collectod seek guidance
from other website posters on how to handle thesidn. Advertisements by debt relief attorneys ealit
counseling centers are becoming more common, additige negative attention given to our industrg.aAresult of
this negative publicity, debtors may be more relntto pay their debts or could pursue legal aciigainst us
regardless of whether those actions are warraitezbe actions could impact our ability to collesttbe receivable
we acquire and affect our revenues and profitgbilit

Class action suits and other litigation in our incitiry could divert our management’s attention fronperating
our business and increase our expenses.

Originators, debt purchasers and thaakty collection agencies and attorneys in the wores credit industry a
frequently subject to putative class action lawssaitd other litigation. Claims include failure wnaply with
applicable laws and regulations and improper oegtee origination and servicing practices. Beirdpfendant in
such class action lawsuits or other litigation domlaterially adversely affect our results of opierat and financial
condition.
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We may seek to make acquisitions that prove unssstid or strain or divert our resource:

We may seek to grow the Company through acquisitadnelated businesses. Such acquisitions preisést
that could materially adversely affect our businass financial performance, including:

« the diversion of our managem’s attention from our everyday business activi
« the assimilation of the operations and personnéi@ficquired busines

« the contingent and latent risks associated witlptis# operations of, and other unanticipated problarising
in, the acquired business; a

 the need to expand management, administration p@ictional system:
If we make such acquisitions we cannot predict \vbiet

« we will be able to successfully integrate the opiers of any new businesses into our busin
» we will realize any anticipated benefits of comptéacquisitions; ¢
« there will be substantial unanticipated costs dagedt with acquisitions

In addition, future acquisitions by us may resnit i

* potentially dilutive issuances of our equity setesi
« the incurrence of additional debt; a

« the recognition of significant charges for depation and impairment charges related to goddwid other
intangible asset:

Although we have no present plans or intentionsc@arginuously evaluate potential acquisitions ddte
businesses. However, we have not reached any agnt@marrangement with respect to any particulauré
acquisition and we may not be able to completeaampisitions on favorable terms or at all.

Our investments in other businesses and entry inew business ventures may adversely affect our afiens.

We have and may continue to make investments irpaoilms or commence operations in businesses and
industries that are not identical to those withahhive have historically been successful. If thesestments or
arrangements are not successful, our earnings beutdaterially adversely affected by increased esee and
decreased finance income.

If our technology and phone systems are not operatl, our operations could be disrupted and our ktyito
successfully acquire receivable portfolios and raaecollections from debtors could be adverselyeated.

Our success depends, in part, on sophisticatechtalmunications and computer systems. The temptoasyo
our computer or telecommunications systems, thraaglialty, operating malfunction or service providdure,
could disrupt our operations. In addition, we nmasbrd and process significant amounts of datakbuand
accurately to properly bid on prospective acquisgiof receivable portfolios and to access, mairdaad expand the
databases we use for our collection and monitatiiyities. Any failure of our information systerasd their
backup systems would interrupt our operations. Veig not have adequate backup arrangements for atirof
operations and we may incur significant losses ibatage occurs. In addition, we rely on third-paxtllection
agencies and attorneys who also may be adverdelsted in the event of an outage in which the tpiadty
collection agencies and attorneys do not have adedpackup arrangements. Any interruption in ow@ragpons or
our third-party collection agencies’ and attorneysérations could have an adverse effect on outtsesf
operations and financial condition. However, weiarthe process of implementing a disaster recopesgram
which would mitigate this risk.
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Our organizational documents and Delaware law mayke it harder for us to be acquired without the czamt
and cooperation of our board of directors and maregent.

Several provisions of our organizational documenmis Delaware law may deter or prevent a takeovemai,
including a takeover attempt in which the poterpiaichaser offers to pay a per share price gréaaerthe current
market price of our common stock. Under the terfrsuo certificate of incorporation, our board ofetitors has the
authority, without further action by the stockhatslgo issue shares of preferred stock in one aerseries and to
fix the rights, preferences, privileges and resitiits thereof. The ability to issue shares of prefé stock could tend
to discourage takeover or acquisition proposalsuapported by our current board of directors. Iditah, we are
subject to Section 203 of the Delaware General @atpn Law, which restricts business combinatiaith some
stockholders once the stockholder acquires 15%oawve rof our common stock.

Future sales of our common stock by members of 8tern Family or other shareholders may depress stock
price.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of our aamstock in the public market could cause a deergathe
market price of our common stock. We had 14,600st28es of common stock issued and outstandin§ as o
December 3, 2010. Of these shares, 3,897,322 &rdheur affiliates and are saleable under Ruké dfithe
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, subject twdheme limitations set forth in Rule 144. The renusr of our
outstanding shares are freely tradable. In addibptions to purchase approximately 922,039 shafresr common
stock were outstanding as of September 30, 20hih 792,377 were vested. In certain cases,tbecise prices
of such options were higher than the current maskiee of our common stock. We may also issue adtdit shares
in connection with our business and may grant atit stock options or restricted shares to ourleyges,
officers, directors and consultants under our presefuture equity compensation plans or we mayéswvarrants to
third parties outside of such plans. As of Septabe 2010, there were 1,041,468 shares availablsuch purpose
with such shares available under the Equity Comgaérs Plan and the 2002 Stock Option Plan. If aifitant
portion of these shares were sold in the publidketathe market value of our common stock coulédheersely
affected.

In the past, the Company’s Chairman Emeritus, Ar8tern and President and Chief Executive OffiGary
Stern have adopted prearranged stock trading plaarscordance with guidelines specified by RuleStQiunder the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Wibilsuch plans are in effect at present, signifisaigs by the
Stern family could have an adverse effect on mavkiee for our common stock.

We have the ability to issue preferred shares, veautls, convertible debt and other securities without
shareholder approval which could dilute the relagivownership interest of current shareholders andvadsely
effect our share price.

Future sales of our equity-related securities @ghblic market, including sales of our common lsfmersuant
to our shelf-registration statement, could advgraéfiect the trading price of our common stock and ability to
raise funds in new stock offerings. Our common ebanay be subordinate to classes of preferredstsged in
the future in the payment of dividends and othstritiutions made with respect to common share$dirog
distributions upon liquidation or dissolution. Carticles of incorporation permit our Board of Diters to issue
preferred shares without first obtaining sharehosggroval. If we issued preferred shares, thed#@iadal securitie
may have dividend or liquidation preferences settidhe common shares. If we issue convertiblegpredl shares,
subsequent conversion may dilute the current comshareholders’ interest. We have similar abilitegssue
convertible debt, warrants and other equity seestit

Climate change and related regulatory responses rimagact our business.

Climate change as a result of emissions of greeséhgases is a significant topic of discussion aay generat
federal and other regulatory responses in the foéane, including the imposition of a so-called ficand trade”
system. It is impracticable to predict with anytagity the impact on our business of climate chaoghe
regulatory responses to it, although we recogriaethey could be significant. The most direct iatpa likely to be
an increase in energy costs, which would increbgltly our operating costs, primarily through irased utility
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costs. In addition, increased energy costs coupthghconsumers and their ability to incur and reipdgbtedness.
However, it is too soon for us to predict with argrtainty the ultimate impact, either directionallyquantitatively,
of climate change and related regulatory responses.

Our quarterly operating results may fluctuate an@wese our stock price to decline.

Because of the nature of our business, our quamedrating results may fluctuate, which may adeigraffect
the market price of our common stock. Our resulky fluctuate as a result of any of the following:

« the timing and amount of collections on our consuraeeivable portfolios

 our inability to identify and acquire additionalrsumer receivable portfolio
 adecline in the estimated future value of our oomsr receivable portfolio recoverie
* increases in operating expenses associated witlrdweth of our operation:

» general and economic market conditions;

« prices we are willing to pay for consumer receiegtdrtfolios.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

We have not received any written comments regardingperiodic or current reports from the staftioé
Securities and Exchange Commission which were 5386 days or more preceding September 30, 201thand
remain unresolved.

Item 2. Properties.

Our executive and administrative offices are lodateEnglewood Cliffs, New Jersey, where we lease
approximately 14,700 square feet of general offjgace for approximately $20,000 per month, pldgies. The
lease expires on July 31, 2015, with a two-yeaewex option.

Our office in Sugar Land, Texas occupies approxiya®,600 square feet of general office space for
approximately $7,000 per month. The lease expiedslary 28, 2011. The Company is currently exptpteasing
options beyond that date.

We believe that our existing facilities are adeguat our current needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of our business, we areliragbin numerous legal proceedings. We regulaiiljaite
collection lawsuits, using third party law firmgjanst consumers. Also, consumers occasionalliafaititigation
against us, in which they allege that we have tala federal or state law in the process of ctfigon their
account. We do not believe that these ordinaryssuoratters are material to our business and finhoondition. As
of the date of this report, we were not involvedity material litigation.

Item 4. (Removed and Reserver
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registran’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters arsslier Purchases of Equity
Securities.

Since August 15, 2000, our common stock has beetedwn the NASDAQ National Market system under the
symbol “ASFL.” On November 30, 2010 there were 28&lbrs of record of our common stock. High and kales
prices of our common stock since October 1, 200@pgrted by NASDAQ are set forth below (such gtiotes
reflect inter-dealer prices without retail markaparkdown, or commission, and may not necessarniyesent actual
transactions):

_High ~_Low

2009

October 1, 2008 to December 31, 2( $10.0¢  $1.7¢
January 1, 2009 to March 31, 2C 2.7¢ 1.0C
April 1, 2009 to June 30, 20( 6.3€ 2.4t
July 1, 2009 to September 30, 2( 9.24 4.9C
2010

October 1, 2009 to December 31, 2( $ 8.4¢ $6.5¢
January 1, 2010 to March 31, 2C 8.1C 6.0C
April 1, 2010 to June 30, 20: 10.0¢ 7.0t
July 1, 2010 to September 30, 2( 10.0z 7.07

Dividends

During the year ended September 30, 2010, we @ettararterly cash dividends aggregating $1,161($0M2
per share, per quarter). During the year endedeBdyr 30, 2009, we declared quarterly cash divislaggdregating
$1,142,000 ($0.02 per share, per quarter). Futividethd payments will be at the discretion of ooald of director
and will depend upon our financial condition, opigrgresults, capital requirements and any othetofa our board
of directors deems relevant. In addition, our agreets with our lender may, from time to time, nestour ability to
pay dividends. Currently there are no restrictionglace.
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Performance Graph

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set fdrttany of our filings under the Securities Act 883, as
amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 193dresnded, that might incorporate by reference this
Form 1(-K, in whole or in part, the following PerformanGeaph shall not be incorporated by reference inhy a
such filings.
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FISCAL YEAR ENDING SEPT. 30, 2010

Comparison of cumulative total return of one or moe companies, peer groups, industry
indexes, and/or broad markets

Period Ending

Company/index/Market 9/30/200% | 9/30/200€ | 9/30/2007 9/30/200€ | 9/30/200¢ | 9/30/201C
ASTA FUNDING, INC. $100.0( $125.3¢ $128.7( $23.8¢ $ 26.3¢ |$ 26.8]
NASDAQ MARKET INDEX $100.0( $105.8: $127.4¢ $99.42 $101.9¢ [$114.7¢
PEER GROUP INDE> $100.0( $ 84.2¢ $ 72.5¢ $42.4¢ $ 41.8¢ |$ 56.3¢

The customer selected stock group is currently conmiged of:

CompuCredit Corporation
Encore Capital Group, Inc.

NCO Group, Inc. (through 200
Portfolio Recovery Associates, Inc.

25




Table of Contents

Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The following tables set forth a summary of our smidated financial data as of and for the fivedisyears
ended September 30, 2010. The selected finandialfdiathe five fiscal years ended September 3@02Bave been
derived from our audited consolidated financiatestzents. The selected financial data presenteavistould be
read in conjunction with our consolidated finanattements, related notes, other financial inféiomancluded
elsewhere, and Item 7. See “Management’s DiscussidrAnalysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” in this report. Certain items in pry@ars’ information have been reclassified to camftw the current
yeal's presentation.

Year Ended September 30

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(In thousands, except per share date

Operations Statement Da

Finance incomi $45,63. $ 70,15¢ $115,29' $138,35¢ $101,02:
Other income 21¢ 19¢ 25E 2,40¢ 95t
Total revenue 45,84¢ 70,35¢ 115,55( 140,76: 101,97¢
Costs and expense

General and administratiy 23,21 25,91t 29,56! 25,45( 18,26¢
Interest expens 4,36¢ 8,452 17,881 18,24¢ 4,641
Impairments 13,02¢ 183,50( 53,16( 9,097 2,24¢F
Total expense 40,60¢ 217,86° 100,60: 52,79 25,15¢
Income (loss) before income tax 5,241 (147,51) 14,94¢ 87,96¢ 76,82t
Provisions (benefit) for income tax 2,112 (56,787 6,11¢ 35,70: 31,06(
Net income (loss $ 3,12¢  $ (90,72 $ 8,82¢ $ 52,26¢ $ 45,76¢
Basic net income (loss) per shi $ 022 $ (636 $ 06z $ 37¢ $ 3.3€
Diluted net income (loss) per sh: $ 022 $ (636 $§ 061 $ 356 $ 3.1:

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(In millions)

Other Financial Date
For the Year ended September

Cash collection $ 101¢ $ 147« $ 208( $ 281¢ $ 214°%
Portfolio purchases, at cc 8.C 19.€ 49.¢ 440.¢ 200.2
Portfolio purchases, at fa 269.1 577.( 1,456..  10,891.¢ 5,194.(
Return on average assets 1.1% (23.5% 1.7% 12.(% 19.€%
Return on average stockholc’ equity(1) 2.C% (44.8% 3.6% 24.&% 27.&%
Dividends declared per share $ 008 $ 008 $ 01 $ 0.1 $ 05¢
At September 3(

Total asset 259.2 290.¢ 481.1 580.: 287.¢
Total debt 94.¢ 130.¢ 221.7 326.t 82.¢
Total stockholdel' equity 161.¢ 157.¢ 247 .¢ 237.t 184.:
Inception to dat— September 3(

Cumulative aggregate purchases, at 31,896.¢  31,626.¢ 31,049.¢ 29,593.&{  18,701.¢

(1) The return on average assets is computed by divitié income by average total assets for the figeat. The
return on average stockholders’ equity is compubiedividing net income by the average stockholdecgiity
for the fiscal year. Both ratios have been computdg beginning and peri-end balance

(2) Includes a special dividend of $0.40 per sharedib62
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Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionnal Results of Operation.
Caution Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains certaimrd-looking statements within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 199%rward{ooking statements typically are identified by w$éerms
such as “may”, “will”, “should”, “plan”, “expect”;anticipate”, “estimate”, and similar words, alttgfusome
forward-looking statements are expressed diffeyeftbrward-looking statements represent our judgmegrarding
future events, but we can give no assurance tlehtjsdgments will prove to be correct. Such statgsare subject
to risks and uncertainties that could cause acasailts to differ materially and adversely fromgagrojected in
such forward-looking statements. Certain factorgtvicould materially affect our results and ouufet
performance are described above under Item 1A “Ré&kors” and below under “Critical Accounting Ras” in
“ltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis ofdficial Condition and Results of Operations”. Fodva
looking statements are inherently uncertain as #reybased on current expectations and assumgiimeerning
future events and are subject to numerous knowruakdown risks and uncertainties. We caution yoLto@lace
undue reliance on these forwdmbking statements, which speak only as of the dathis report. Except as requi
by law, we undertake no obligation to update orliglypbannounce revisions to any forward-lookingtstaents.
Unless the context otherwise requires, the ternes’,us”, “the Company”, or “our” as used hereirfieeto Asta
Funding, Inc. and our subsidiaries.

Overview

We are primarily engaged in the business of aaggiirmanaging for our own account, servicing andvetng
on portfolios of consumer receivables. These pliodayenerally consist of one or more of the foliogvtypes of
consumer receivables:

« charged-off receivables -aecounts that have been written-off by the origireind may have been
previously serviced by collection agenci

« semi-performing receivables aecounts where the debtor is making partial ogirter monthly payments,
but the accounts may have been wr-off by the originators; and in limited circumstan¢

 performing receivable—accounts where the debtor is making regular monghjyments that may or may
not have been delinquent in the p

We acquire these consumer receivable portfoli@ssagnificant discount to the amount actually owgdhe
borrowers. We acquire these portfolios after aitptate and quantitative analysis of the underlyiageivables and
calculate the purchase price so that our estinzsh flow offers us an adequate return on our invest after
servicing expenses. After purchasing a portfolie,agtively monitor its performance and review adjist our
collection and servicing strategies accordingly.

We purchase receivables from credit grantors aherstthrough privately negotiated direct saleskémed
transactions and auctions in which sellers of red#es seek bids from several pre-qualified debthmasers. We
pursue new acquisitions of consumer receivabldgm$ on an ongoing basis through:

« our relationships with industry participarfiteancial institutions, collection agencies, inv@stand our
financing sources

* brokers who specialize in the sale of consumerivabée portfolios; ant

« other sources

Critical Accounting Policies
We account for our investments in consumer recéavpbrtfolios, using either:

« The interest method; «
« The cost recovery metha
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As we believe our extensive liquidating experieimceertain asset classes such as distressed ceedit
receivables, consumer loan receivables and mixegroer receivables has matured, we use the interthbd
when we believe we can reasonably estimate thedimi the cash flows. In those situations wherediversify our
acquisitions into other asset classes in which avaat possess the same expertise or history, @aweot
reasonably estimate the timing of the cash flonesilize the cost recovery method of accountingfiose
portfolios of receivables.

We account for our investment in finance receivslbiging the interest method under the guidanceSgt A10.
Static pools of accounts are established. Thesks jpoe aggregated based on certain common riskieriEach
static pool is recorded at cost and is accountedda@ single unit for the recognition of incomengipal payments
and loss provision. We currently consider for aggtmn portfolios of accounts, purchased withingheme fiscal
quarter, that generally have the following chanasties:

e same issuer/originatt

« same underlying credit quali

« similar geographic distribution of the accou

 similar age of the receivable a

» same type of asset class (credit cards, teleconuations, etc.

After determining that an investment will yield adequate return on our acquisition cost after seryifees,
including court costs, which are expensed as ied/uve use a variety of qualitative and quantieafactors to
determine the estimated cash flows. As previousintioned, included in our analysis for purchasimp#folio of
receivables and determining a reasonable estini@t@lections and the timing thereof, the followingriables are
analyzed and factored into our original estimates:

 the number of collection agencies previously attémgpto collect the receivables in the portfol
« the average balance of the receivak

« the age of the receivables (as older recedsarlight be more difficult to collect or might les$ cost
effective);

 past history of performance of similar assetgas we purchase portfolios of similar assets, elebe we
have built significant history on how these recblea will liquidate and cash flov

* number of months since cha-off;
e payments made since chz-off;
« the credit originator and their credit guidelin

« the locations of the debtors as there arebstates to attempt to collect in and ultimatetylvave better
predictability of the liquidations and the expectesh flows. Conversely, there are also statesenther
liquidation rates are not as good and that is fadinto our cash flow analysi

» financial wherewithal of the selle

* jobs or property of the debtors found within paiitie-with our business model, this is of particular
importance. Debtors with jobs or property are niikely to repay their obligation and converselybties
without jobs or property are less likely to rephgit obligation; anc

« the ability to obtain customer statements fromdtginal issuer

We will obtain and utilize as appropriate inputluding, but not limited to, monthly collection peajtions and
liquidation rates, from our third party collectiagencies and attorneys, as further evidentiaryemdtt assist us in
developing collection strategies and in modelirgyéRpected cash flows for a given portfolio.

We acquire accounts that have experienced detBaoraf credit quality between origination and thete of
our acquisition of the accounts. The amount paidafportfolio of accounts reflects our determinatibat it is

28




Table of Contents

probable we will be unable to collect all amountg @éccording to the portfolio of accounts’ contuatterms. We
consider the expected payments and estimate therdgrand timing of undiscounted expected principdgrest and
other cash flows for each acquired portfolio codphéth expected cash flows from accounts availédreales. The
excess of this amount over the cost of the podfokpresenting the excess of the account’s caslsfexpected to
be collected over the amount paid, is accretediim@ome recognized on finance receivables oveexpected
remaining life of the portfolio.

We believe we have significant experience in aéagicertain distressed consumer receivable poodit a
significant discount to the amount actually owedunglerlying debtors. We acquire these portfolioy after both
gualitative and quantitative analyses of the unyileglreceivables are performed and a calculatedhase price is
paid so that we believe our estimated cash flowrsftis an adequate return on our acquisition aodtsding
servicing expenses. Additionally, when considetarger portfolio purchases of accounts, or portflirom issuers
from whom we have little or limited experience, have the added benefit of soliciting our third paxllection
agencies and attorneys for their input on liquolatiates and at times incorporate such input imétice we offer
for a given portfolio and the estimates we useoforexpected cash flows.

As a result of the a challenging economic environinaad the impact it has had on collections, fatfptio
purchases acquired in fiscal year 2009 we extendetime frame of the expectation of recovering%0&f our
invested capital to a 24 -39 month period from 828 month period, and the expectation of recogerin
130-140% over 7 years from the previous 5 year egpien. The 2009 time frame of expectations hasaired in
force for fiscal year 2010. We routinely monitoesie expectations against the actual cash flowsatite event the
cash flows are below our expectations and we belibere are no reasons relating to mere timingwiffces or
explainable delays (such as can occur particulahign the court system is involved) for the reducaltections, an
impairment is recorded on portfolios accountedoiothe interest method. Conversely, in the evemtctsh flows
are in excess of our expectations and the reastureiso timing, we would defer the “excess” coliectas deferred
revenue.

We use the cost recovery method when collections particular pool of accounts cannot be reasonably
predicted. Under the cost recovery method, no fieancome is recognized until the cost of the ptidthas been
fully recovered. A pool can become fully amortiZedro carrying balance on the balance sheet) wstille
generating cash collections. In this case, all cadlections are recognized as finance income wheeived.

Results of Operations

The following discussion of our operations and fiicial condition should be read in conjunction wotr
financial statements and notes thereto includegindisre in this report. In these discussions, mextgntages and
dollar amounts have been rounded to aid presentai®a result, all such figures are approximations

Years Ended September 3(
2010 2009 2008

Finance incom 99.5%% 99.7% 99.€%
Other income 0.5% 0.2% 0.2%
Total revenue 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%

General and administrative expen 50.7% 36.8% 25.t%
Interest expens 9.5% 12.(% 15.2%
Impairments 28.4% 261.% 46.(%

Income (loss) before income tax
Provision (benefit) for income tax

Net income (loss

11.4%
4.€%

(209.9% 12.9%
(80.9%  5.3%

6.8%

(129.0%  7.€%
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Year Ended September 30, 2010 Compared to the ¥Eealed September 30, 20I

Finance income. For the year ended September 30, 2010, finarmmeria decreased $24.6 million or 35.0% to
$45.6 million from $70.2 million for the year end8dptember 30, 2009. Finance income has decreageatify
due to the lower level of portfolio purchases aerlast two years and, as a result, an increaseeptage of our
portfolio balances are in the later stages of thieild curves. The average outstanding level osoamer receivable
accounts acquired for liquidation decreased fro2883 million for the fiscal year ended September2®9 to
$177.6 million for fiscal year ended SeptemberZL0, reflecting a reduced level of portfolio puasks and the
recognition of impairments in the fourth quarteffie€al year 2010 of approximately $13.0 million.dddition, we
recorded $143.7 million in impairments in the setbalf of fiscal year 2009. During the fiscal yesaded
September 30, 2010, we acquired $269.1 millioragefvalue of new portfolios at a cost of $8.0 millas compare
to $577.0 million of face value portfolios at a £849.6 million, during the fiscal year ended Segter 30, 2009.
Finance income recognized from fully amortized fodids (zero basis revenue) was $34.3 million ad@.$ million
for the years ended September 30, 2010 and 20§)8ctvely.

Net collections decreased $45.5 million or 30.9%161.9 million for the fiscal year ended Septengir
2010, from $147.4 million for the fiscal year end&gptember 30, 2009. During fiscal year 2010, gecofiections
decreased 29.8% to $157.6 million from $224.5 wnilifor fiscal year 2009, reflecting the lower leeépurchases,
the age of our portfolios and the slowdown in tberemmy. Commissions and fees associated with galkesctions
from our third party collection agencies and ateydecreased $21.5 million or 27.8% as compar#teteame
period in the prior year and averaged 35.3% ofectitbns for the fiscal year ended September 300 28lcompared
to 34.3% in the same prior year period.

Further, as we have curtailed our purchases ofpwtfolios of consumer receivables in the lastéhiscal
years, finance income was negatively impacted améxpect will continue to be negatively impactethgdorward
since we have not been replacing our receivablgsiaa for liquidation. Instead, we have focusedeufucing our
debt and being highly disciplined in our portfoiorchases. We continue to review potential podfatiquisitions
regularly and will be buyers at the right price amwe believe the purchase will yield our desiigd of return.
There were no accretable yield adjustments recoddeidg the fiscal years ended September 30, 26d®809.

Other income. Other income of $218,000 and $199,000 for theafigear ended September 30, 2010 and :
respectively, consisted primarily of service feeome and interest income from banks.

General and administrative expenseBor the year ended September 30, 2010, genata@ministrative
expenses decreased $2.7 million or 10.4% to $28ldmfrom $25.9 million for the year ended Septeen 30,
2009. Lower general and administrative expensdsaésprimarily to the closing of the Pennsylvanith center in
February 2009, lower collection expenses, primdhbydiscontinuation in May 2009 of the $275,00thty
management fee paid to a significant servicerixgdb the Portfolio Purchase, and lower telephexgense and
professional fees. We have improved the efficienfcthe telephone collection management system ¢hwtdduced
costs without a significant impact on the resuibsrf the volume of calls.

Interest expenseFor the year ended September 30, 2010, intexpsiee decreased $4.1 million or 48.3% to
$4.4 million from $8.5 million during the year emti8eptember 30, 2009. The decrease was due teghgment of
the outstanding borrowings under our line of cradid the reduction of our Receivables Financinge@grent
(described below under the caption “Receivableafiing Agreement”) loan balance during the yeaednd
September 30, 2010, as compared to the year eragadrber 30, 2009. Additionally, the average irderate
during the year ended September 30, 2010 on theiRdxe Financing Agreement was 3.77% as compardBRY
during the year ended September 30, 2009. Thenatiee subordinated debt — related party was isegéom
6.25% to 10.0% during fiscal year 2010; howeveg,hincipal balance was paid down to $4.4 milliemindg fiscal
year 2010 from $8.2 million at September 30, 2008 average outstanding borrowings decreased
$168.1 million to $112.9 million for the years eddgeptember 30, 2009 and 2010, respectively.

Impairments. Impairments of $13.0 million were recorded bydusing the year ended September 30, 2010 as
compared to $183.5 million for the year ended Saptr 30, 2009. The impairment recorded in fiscar2010 wa
related to the Portfolio Purchase. During fiscadry2010 a significant servicer of accounts of tbefBlio
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Purchase declared bankruptcy which caused a delegllections as accounts were transferred to ctbericers.
Although we believe value remains in the Portféliorchase, the delay has impacted projections tdatimns of the
Portfolio Purchase. Included in the fiscal year2@@pairments is approximately $108.5 million retato the
interest method portfolios and $75.0 million rethte cost recovery method portfolios, including $6&pplied to
the Portfolio Purchase. For the interest methotf@ars, relative collections with respect to oxpectations were
deteriorating and this deterioration was confirrbgdur third party collection agencies and attomédye
deterioration, which had impacted us throughoutyter, became more significant during the fourtartgr of the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2009. In fiscal 640, the entire impairment which was determibgdis in
connection the preparation of our year end findrst&ements, was taken in the fourth quarter afated to the
Portfolio Purchase resulting in a write down to reztlizable value of $91.8 million at SeptemberZm,0.

Income tax expense (benefit) Income tax expense for fiscal year 2010 of $2.lionilconsists of a current t
benefit of $3.2 million and a deferred tax expeofs$5.3 million. Included in the deferred tax experis a
$5.6 million true up of federal income taxes frastél year 2009. Upon the completion of our Fedevaketurn for
fiscal year 2009 and the application for the tdxmd completed earlier in the second quarter, gaeFal tax refund
estimate of $46 million was revised upward to agpnately $52 million which caused the $5.6 millibne up in
the current year. This change was due to a combmaf applying the Federal tax net operating leesyback and
the recognition of the benefit of the state netrapieg loss carryforwards for federal tax purposes other timing
differences applied to the current year tax retlilrese adjustments did not affect the statemeapefations and
yielded a net adjustment between the federal indameeceivable and the deferred tax as

Income tax benefit for fiscal year 2009 of $56.8lioni consists of a federal tax benefit of $46.0liowm and a
state tax benefit of $10.8 million. The state def@rtax benefit is inclusive of a $4.4 million vation allowance.
Although the carryforward period for state incorag purposes is up to twenty years, given the ecanoonditions
such economic environment could limit growth oveeasonable time period to realize the deferrecitmet. The
Company determined the time period allowance faryfarward is outside a reasonable period to foseall
realization of the deferred tax asset, therefotegrized the deferred tax asset valuation allowance

Net income (loss).For the year ended September 30, 2010, net indacneased $93.9 million to $3.1 million
from a $90.7 million loss for the year ended Seten80, 2009, primarily reflecting decreased impaints and
other expenses, partially offset by reduced financeme and higher income taxes. Net income petadtil share for
the year ended September 30, 2010 increased $6érEBlpted share to $0.22 per diluted share froi3®) per
diluted share for the year ended September 30,.2009

Year Ended September 30, 2009 Compared to the ¥Eealed September 30, 2008

Finance income. For the year ended September 30, 2009, finarmmeria decreased $45.1 million or 39.2% to
$70.2 million from $115.3 million for the year emti8eptember 30, 2008. The average outstanding dével
consumer receivable accounts acquired for liquidatiecreased from $497.3 million for the fiscalryeraded
September 30, 2008 to $394.6 million for fiscalryeaded September 30, 2009, reflecting a combinatidower
collections and lower portfolio purchases in 200&npared to the prior period. A significant reasonthe decrease
in finance income is the impact of the Portfoliacéhase being transferred from the interest metbddd cost
recovery method effective in the third quarteris€él year 2008. The finance income recorded orPtiréfolio
Purchase in fiscal year 2008, prior to the transfarost recovery, was $17.7 million, as compacezktro finance
income recorded in fiscal year 2009. No financeme will be recognized on the Portfolio Purchase after the
entire carrying value of $121.5 million, as of Sapber 30, 2009, is collected.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 200%ag@ired consumer receivable portfolios at a abst
$19.6 million as compared to $49.9 million durihg fiscal year ended September 30, 2008. The fiogfo
purchased in fiscal year 2008 include a portfolioghased that is domiciled in South America atst ob
$8.6 million. Further, as we have curtailed ourghaises of new portfolios of consumer receivablemduhe
second, third and fourth quarters of 2008 and 2@@9, finance income was negatively impacted aridcamtinue tc
be negatively impacted going forward since we ater@placing our receivables acquired for liquidatilnstead, w
are focusing, in the short-term, on reducing ount@ad being highly disciplined in our portfolionghases. We
continue to review potential portfolio acquisitiaregularly and will be buyers at the right pricénese we believe
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the purchase will yield our desired rate of retd#imance income recognized from fully amortizedtfmdios (zero
basis revenue) wa40.7 million and$ 45.3 million for the years ended September 30, 20492008, respectively.
There were no accretable yield adjustments recoddedg the fiscal years ended September 30, 2662808.

Other income. Other income of $199,000 and $255,000 for theafigear ended September 30, 2009 and :
respectively, consisted primarily of service feeome and interest income from banks.

General and administrative expenseBor the year ended September 30, 2009, genatadministrative
expenses decreased $3.7 million or 12.3% to $28l@mfrom $29.6 million for the year ended Septeen 30,
2008. Lower general and administrative expensdsésprimarily to lower staffing levels as collect®and purcha:
of accounts acquired for liquidation decreasediBaamtly from the prior year. Staffing levels hadecreased, from
158 full time employees as of September 30, 200®full time employees as of September 30, 2009.
Approximately 38 employees were eliminated in Fabylt2009 as a result of the closing of the Penmsyévcall
center, with a salary cost savings of approxima@l8 million during the year ended September 8092 Lower
postage expense in the current fiscal year isleatefn of fewer mailings resulting from lower plotto purchases.

Interest expenseFor the year ended September 30, 2009, intexpsinse decreased $9.4 million or 52.7% to
$8.5 million from $17.9 million during the year extiSeptember 30, 2008. The decrease was due tweade in
our outstanding borrowings under our line of creditl our Receivables Financing Agreement, duriegyéar ende
September 30, 2009, as compared to the outstabdimgwings during the year ended September 30, ,2@led
with lower interest rates during the year ended&uaper 30, 2009. The average interest rate (exwudnused
credit line fees) for the year ended SeptembeRB309 on the line of credit and the Receivable RtmanAgreemen
was 4.72% as compared to 6.11% during the yearde®dptember 30, 2008. The rate on the subordirmktiet—
related party is fixed at 6.25%. The average onthtay borrowings decreased from $274.1 million 16& 1 million
for the years ended September 30, 2008 and 20§)8ctvely, reflecting the Company’s continuingoetfto pay
down its debt.

Impairments. Impairments of $183.5 million were recorded by @ompany during the year ended
September 30, 2009 as compared to $53.2 milliothyear ended September 30, 2008. Included inutrent
yeals impairments is approximately $108.5 million teld to the interest method portfolios and $75.0ionil
related to cost recovery method portfolios, inchgd$53.9 applied to the Portfolio Purchase. Foririterest method
portfolios, relative collections with respect tor@xpectations were deteriorating and this detation was
confirmed by our third party collection agenciesl attorneys. The deterioration, which has impaatethroughout
the year, became more significant during the foqttarter of the fiscal year ended September 309.28Btorically,
moving through the year and into the fourth quaceliections tend to be stable or perhaps incremperformance.
For cost recovery portfolios the impairments reedrdirote down the cost recovery portfolios to tmeit realizable
value. As with the interest method portfolios, third party collection agencies and attorneys cargd during the
fourth quarter of fiscal year 2009, the recentdrefthe deterioration of collections. Althoughlections on the co
recovery method portfolios are expected to contimeshave determined the final estimated collestiwiil not be
enough to recover the original cost of or curremtying value of the portfolio. The impairment aparfor the
Portfolio Purchase wrote down the value of thefpbatto $121.9 million. Impairment charges in 20@8luded
$30.3 million on the Portfolio Purchase prior ®titansfer to the cost recovery method.

Income tax (benefit) expense Income tax benefit for fiscal year 2009 of $56.8lioni consists of a federal t
benefit of $46.0 million and a state tax benefid0.8 million. The state deferred tax benefinigusive of a
$4.4 million valuation allowance. Although the gdarward period for state income tax purposes isougventy
years, given the economic conditions, such econemiironment could limit growth over a reasonabteetperiod
to realize the deferred tax asset. The Companyrdeted the time period allowance for carryforwssautside a
reasonable period to forecast full realizationhef teferred tax asset, therefore recognized therréelftax asset
valuation allowance. The Company continually mamsitiorecast information to ensure the valuatioovadince is at
the appropriate value. In fiscal year 2008 the inedax expense of $6.1 million was comprised oétafederal tax
of $4.6 million (including $6.6 million current) dra net state tax of $1.5 million (including $2.1lion current).
The current year tax benefit is driven primarilythg impairment charges recorded during the figeat 2009.
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Net (loss) income.For the year ended September 30, 2009, net incecreased $99.5 million to
$(90.7) million from $8.8 million for the year erti&eptember 30, 2008, primarily reflecting increbisepairments
and reduced finance income in fiscal year 200%jgilyr offset by lower income taxes and expensest.iNcome per
diluted share for the year ended September 30, 886 ased $6.96 per diluted share to $(6.36)ipeed share,
from $0.61 per diluted share for the year endede®ejper 30, 2008.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary source of cash from operations is ctites on the receivable portfolios we have acqli@ur
primary uses of cash include repayments of delithases of consumer receivable portfolios, intgragments,
costs involved in the collections of consumer reakies, taxes and dividends, if approved. In tst, pee have
relied significantly upon our lenders to provide fands necessary for the purchase of consumerabtes
acquired for liquidation.

Leumi Credit Agreement

On December 14, 2009 Asta Funding, Inc. and itsislidries other than Palisades XVI, entered ingoltumi
Credit Agreement which permits maximum principatauces of up to $6 million. The term of the agreenie
through December 31, 2010. The interest rate lisadifig rate equal to the Bank Leumi Reference Rats 2%,
with a floor of 4.5%. The loan is secured by ca@tat consisting of all of the assets of the Compather than those
of Palisades XVI and a pledge by GMS Family InvestbLC, an investment company owned by membethef
Stern family, of cash and securities with a valti@38% of the loan commitment. There are no finahcovenant
restrictions in the Leumi Credit Agreement. On Daber 14, 2009, approximately $3.6 million of thenBd.eumi
credit line was used to reduce to zero the remgibalance of the IDB Credit Facility described beldhe Leumi
Credit Agreement is the current senior facilitytteé Company. The Leumi Credit Agreement balanceredgced t
zero in January 2010; however, the $6 million dikability remains. We are currently working withirdbank on a
new credit facility with a larger credit limit.

Receivables Financing Agreement

In March 2007, Palisades XVI borrowed approxima&227 million under the Receivables Financing
Agreement, as amended in July 2007, December 208y 2008 and February 2009, with the Bank of Maaitre
(“BMO”) in order to finance the Portfolio Purchadéhe Portfolio Purchase had a purchase price of $30ion
(plus 20% of net payments after Palisades XVI rec®150% of its purchase price plus cost of fundéch
recovery has not yet occurred). Prior to the modtfon, discussed below, the debt was full recoandg to
Palisades XVI and provided for an interest ratapggroximately 170 basis points over LIBOR. The ioiagterm of
the agreement was three years. This term was eeddngdeach of the Second, Third, Fourth and FifteAdments
to the Receivables Financing Agreement as discussledv. The Receivables Financing Agreement coathaross
default provisions related to the IDB Credit FayiliThis cross default could only occur in the evefiia non-
payment in excess of $2.5 million of the IDB Crdeficility. Proceeds received as a result of thecakéctions fron
the Portfolio Purchase are applied to interest@imtipal of the underlying loan. The Portfolio Bhase is serviced
by Palisades Collection LLC, a wholly owned sulidiof the Company, which has engaged unaffiliated
subservicers for a majority of the Portfolio Pureha

Since the inception of the Receivables FinancingeAment amendments have been signed to revisausario
terms of the Receivables Financing Agreement. BHeviing is a summary of the material amendments:

Second Amendment — Receivables Financing Agreendatéd December 27, 2007 revised the amortization
schedule of the loan from 25 months to approxinge@&lmonths. BMO charged Palisades XVI a fee of63d00
which was paid on January 10, 2008. The fee waitatiapd and is being amortized over the remaitifegof the
Receivables Financing Agreement.

Third Amendment —Receivables Financing Agreement, dated May 19, 20@&ded the payments of the |
through December 2010. The lender also increasethtarest rate from 170 basis points over LIBOR to
approximately 320 basis points over LIBOR, subjeciutomatic reduction in the future if additioapital
contributions are made by the parent of Palisadés X
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Fourth Amendment — Receivables Financing Agreendated February 20, 2009, among other things,
(i) lowered the collection rate minimum to $1 nati per month (plus interest and fees) as an avdoagach perio
of three consecutive months, (ii) provided for atoanatic extension of the maturity date from ABfI, 2011 to
April 30, 2012 should the outstanding balance lbeiced to $25 million or less by April 30, 2011 and
(iii) permanently waived the previous terminatiorests. The interest rate remained unchanged abzippately
320 basis points over LIBOR, subject to automagituction in the future should certain collectionestones be
attained.

As additional credit support for repayment by Raliss XVI of its obligations under the ReceivablggmRcing
Agreement and as an inducement for BMO to entertimt Fourth Amendment, the Company provided BMO a
limited recourse, subordinated guaranty, securethéyassets of the Company, in an amount not teezkc
$8.0 million plus reasonable costs of enforcemedt@llection. Under the terms of the guaranty, BM&Dnot
exercise any recourse against the Company untédheer of (i) five years from the date of the RbuAmendment
and (ii) the termination of the Company’s exists®nior lending facility or any successor senioilitstc

On October 26, 2010, Palisades XVI entered intd-ifta Amendment to the Receivables Financing Agreset
(the “Fifth Amendment”). The effective date of thifth Amendment was October 14, 2010. The Fifth Adraent
(i) extends the expiration date of the ReceivabBleancing Agreement to April 30, 2014, (ii) reduties minimum
monthly total payment to $750,000, (iii) accelesditee Company’s guarantee credit enhancement 308800,
which was paid upon execution of the Fifth Amendtmén) eliminates the Company’s limited guarantée
repayment of the loans outstanding by Palisades Xl (v) revises the definition of “Borrowing Bd3eficit”, as
defined in the Receivables Financing Agreementéan the excess, if any, of 105% of the loans anihg over
the borrowing base.

In connection with the Fifth Amendment, on OctoB6r 2010, the Company entered into the Omnibus
Termination Agreement (the “Termination Agreementhe limited recourse subordinated guaranty discliesde
the Fourth Amendment, was eliminated upon signiregTtermination Agreement.

On September 30, 2010 and 2009, the outstanditmgdalon the Receivable Financing Agreement loan was
approximately $90.5 million and $104.3 million, pestively. The average interest rate of the RetdévBinancing
Agreement was 3.77% and 4.82% for the twelve mpatiods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, resglgcti
We were in compliance with all covenants at Sep&m30, 2010 and through all reporting periods tgiothe date
of this report.

IDB Credit Facility

The Eighth Amendment to the IDB Credit Facility emgd into on July 10, 2009 provided for an initial
$40 million line of credit from the Bank Group fportfolio purchases and working capital and waedaled to
reduce to zero by December 31, 2009. The IDB Creatiility provided for interest at the lesser oBOR plus an
applicable margin, or the prime rate minus an applie margin based on certain leverage ratios, avitiinimum
rate of 5.5%. The IDB Credit Facility was collatézad by all assets of the Company other than #iseta of
Palisades XVI and contained financial and otheeoawts. The IDB Credit Facility’s commitment teration date
was December 31, 2009. This IDB Credit Facility wegsaid on December 14, 2009. The balance of ID&ICr
Facility was $18.3 million on September 30, 2009.

Subordinated Debt — Related Party

On April 29, 2008, we obtained a subordinated lparsuant to a subordinated promissory note fronfFtraily
Entity. The Family Entity is a greater than 5% sthalder of the Company and is beneficially owned eontrolled
by Arthur Stern, a director of the Company, Gargr&tthe President, Chairman and Chief Executife€@fof the
Company, and members of their families. The loaigjmeally in the aggregate principal amount of $85200,
currently accrues interest at a rate of 10.0% peum, is payable interest only each quarter urdilurity on
December 31, 2010, subject to repayment in futhefCompany’s loan facility.

The Family Entity loan was extended in Decembe@2@0December 31, 2010 with a new interest rate
(effective January 2010) of 10.0% per annum (folyrigre rate was 6.25%). On January 27, 2010, thagamy
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repaid approximately $860,740 of the subordinabedh| delivering approximately $787,500 to the Fgrihtity,
which, the Family Entity delivered its portion et loan payment to Gary Stern, who used the preceeexercise
the 300,000 stock options awarded him in 2000. Vederadditional loan repayments of $1.5 million each
February 17, 2010 and March 26, 2010. The subawetinaan balance was approximately $4.4 million and
$8.2 million as of September 30, 2010 and 200 eetsvely. On November 16, 2010, we made an adtitio
$2.0 million loan repayment to the Family Entitgducing the loan balance to $2.4 million.

The subordinated loan was incurred by us to resmdviin issues with a significant servicer. Proseef the
subordinated loan were used to reduce the balareem our line of credit with the IDB Bank Group dume 13,
2008. This facility was secured by substantiallyoathe assets of the Company and its subsidiapier than the
assets of Palisades XVI.

Cash Flow

As of September 30, 2010, our cash increased $8illi8n to $84.2 million from $2.4 million at Septéer 30
2009. The increase in cash was primarily the refuieceiving a $52.7 million tax refund paying &i€ senior debt
and reduced portfolio purchases.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $&8illion during the fiscal year ended SeptemberZ,0,
compared to net cash provided by operating aawibf $32.9 million for the fiscal year ended Sepier 30, 2009.
The increase was primarily due to receipt of a $52illion tax refund in June 2010, partially off¢st lower net
income, adjusted for non-cash items. Net cash geavby investing activities was $48.1 million dyyithe fiscal
year ended September 30, 2010, as compared tastepcovided by investing activities of $57.0 mifliduring the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2009. The decreas@rimarily due to lower collections of consumesgreivables
acquired for liquidation, partially offset by theaease in the purchase of consumer receivablesraddor
liquidation during the year ended September 3002&lcompared to the same period. Net cash usewanting
activities was $35.0 million during the fiscal yearded September 30, 2010, as compared to caslinueancing
activities of $91.1 million in the prior period. &lincrease was primarily due to a smaller pay dofaebt during
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010 compartet tprior period. The IDB credit facility was dadown
$66.6 million during the fiscal year ended Septendfe 2009; however, only $18.3 million remained#opaid off
in the current fiscal year.

Our cash requirements have been and will contioleetsignificant and have, in the past, dependegkternal
financing to acquire consumer receivables and ¢@éna business. Significant requirements inclubayments
under our debt facilities, purchase of consumegivable portfolios, interest payments, costs ingdhin the
collections of consumer receivables, and taxeadttition, dividends are paid if approved by the i8lazf Directors.
Acquisitions have been financed primarily througistt flows from operating activities and a crediilfy. We
believe we will be less dependent on a credititgdih the short-term as our cash flow from opearas will be
sufficient to purchase portfolios and operate th&iiess. However, as the collection environmengies
challenging, we may seek additional funding.

We are cognizant of the current market fundameintaise debt purchase and company acquisition nsrke
which, because of significant supply and tight tavailability, could result in increased buyiogportunities.
Accordingly, we filed a $100 million shelf registien statement with the SEC which was declaredcéffe during
the third quarter of 2010. As of the date of tlepart, we have not issued any securities underejistration
statement. The outcome of any future transactias(s)bject to market conditions. In addition, doi¢hese
opportunities, we continue to work with our currbank group and others on a new and expanded &adityf.

Our business model affords us the ability to setloaints on an opportunistic basis. While we hawe no
consummated any significant sales from our PodfBlirchase, we launched a sales effort in ordattéonpt to
enhance our cash flow and pay down our debt fabler results are slower than expected for a vadefgctors,
including a slow resale market, similar to the dase in pricing we are seeing in general.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contractual gdtions in future fiscal years:

Payments Due By Period

Less Than More Than

Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Long Term Debt Obligation $90,483,00 $17,950,000 $27,000,00 $45,533,00 $ —
Operating Lease Obligatiol $ 1,176,000 $ 270,00 $ 709,000 $ 197,00( —
Subordinated Det $ 4,386,000 $ 4,386,00! — — —
Total $96,045,00 $22,606,000 $27,709,00 $45,730,00 —

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of September 30, 2010, we did not have anyicelsiips with unconsolidated entities or finangattners,
such as entities often referred to as structureghfie or special purpose entities, establishethéopurpose of
facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or otloatractually narrow or limited purposes. As sueh are not
materially exposed to any financing, liquidity, rketror credit risk that could arise if we had erggh@n such
relationships.

The following table shows the changes in finanoeirables, including amounts paid to acquire nevtfpiios:

Year Ended September 30,

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(In millions)

Balance at beginning of peri $208.2 $449.C $545.¢ $257.% $172.7
Acquisitions of finance receivables, net of buybs 8.C 19.€ 49.¢ 440.¢ 200.2
Cash collections from debtors applied to princibgl) (55.]) (69.7) 81.7) (1149 (90.9)
Cash collections represented by account saleseajpiali

principal(1) (1.2 (8.1 (11.0 (29.7) (23.0
Impairments/Portfolio write dow (13.0 (1839 (53.2) (9.2 (2.2
Effect of foreign exchang — 0.4 (0.6) — —
Balance at end of peric $147.( $208.% $449.C $545.€ $257.%

(1) Cash collections applied to principal consistsasftccollections less income recognized on finaaceivables
plus amounts received by us from the sale of corsuateivable portfolios to third partie

(2) In 2007, includes put backs of purchased accoatdsred to the seller totaling $5.5 million. Putksare
considered not material for all other years pres!

Supplementary Information on Consumer Receivabtefdbios:

Portfolio Purchases

Year Ended September 30,

2010 2009 2008
(In millions)
Aggregate Purchase Pri 8C $19€ $ 49¢
Aggregate Portfolio Face Amou 269.1 577.( 1,605.:

The prices we pay for our consumer receivable plio are dependent on many criteria includingabe of
the portfolio, the number of third party collectiagencies and attorneys that have been involvéteigollection
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process and the geographical distribution of théfgla. When we pay higher prices for portfoliohieh are
performing or fresher, we believe it is not at saerifice of our expected returns. Price fluctuagiéor portfolio
purchases from quarter to quarter or year to yeapamarily indicative of the overall mix of theges of portfolios
we are purchasing.

Schedule of Portfolios by Income Recognition Categp

September 30, 201! September 30, 200! September 30, 200:

Cost Interest Cost Interest Cost Interest
Recovery Method Recovery Method Recovery Method
Portfolios Portfolios Portfolios Portfolios Portfolios Portfolios

(In millions)

Original Purchase Price (at period e $ 442t $ 780L $ 4427 % 7728 $ 405¢ $ 789t
Cumulative Aggregate Managed Portfolios

(at period end 13,913.: 17,966.. 13,884.! 17,725.! 12,053.. 18,980.(
Receivable Carrying Value (at period el 100.5 46.2 137.€ 70.€ 245k 203.t
Finance Income Earned (for the respective

period) 1.7 43.¢ 2.5 67.7 1.2 114.C
Total Cash Flows (for the respective peri 26.C 75.¢ 47.C 100.4 24.¢ 183.(

The original purchase price reflects what we paidliie receivables from 1998 through the end ofélspectiv
period. The cumulative aggregate managed porth@lance is the original aggregate amount owed &ypthrower:
at the end of the respective period. Additionaledénces between year to year period end balanagsesult from
the transfer of portfolios between the interesthradtand the cost recovery method. We purchase nwersu
receivables at substantial discounts from the &weunt. We record finance income on our receivalnheler either
the cost recovery or interest method. The receévabirying value represents the current basiseémebeivables
after collections and amortization of the origipéakte.

Collections Represented by Account Sales

Collections

Representec Finance

By Account Income
Year Sales Recognized
2010 $ 3,485,000 $2,272,00!
2009 8,662,00! 3,085,001
2008 20,395,00 9,361,001
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Portfolio Performance (1)

The following table summarizes our historical politi purchase price and cash collections on intarethod
portfolios on an annual vintage basis since Oct@b@001 through September 30, 2010.

Total
Net Cash Estimated
Collections Estimated Total Collections
Purchase Purchase Including Remaining Estimated as a Percentage
Period Price(2) Cash Sales(3 Collections(4 Collections(5)  of Purchase Prict
2001 $ 65,120,00 $105,549,00 — 105,549,00 162%
2002 36,557,00 48,149,00 — 48,149,00 132%
2003 115,626,00 215,257,00 434,00 215,691,00 187%
2004 103,743,00 184,220,00 270,00C 184,490,00 17&%
2005 126,023,00 212,299,00 5,675,000 217,974,00 172%
2006 163,392,00 246,740,00 11,686,000 258,426,00 15&%
2007 109,235,00 90,252,000 25,331,000 115,583,00 10€%
2008 26,626,00 38,572,00 1,753,001 40,325,00 151%
2009 19,127,00 19,461,00 9,466,00!I 28,927,00 151%
2010 7,698,001 3,690,001 6,987,001 10,677,00 13<%

(1) Total collections do not represent full collectimfthe Company with respect to this or any othean

(2) Purchase price refers to the cash paid to a gelerquire a portfolio less the purchase pricermaéa by a seller
due to the return of n-compliant accounts (also defined as-backs), plus third party commissic

(3) Cash collections include: net collections from third-party collection agencies and attorneys,emibns from
our ir-house efforts and collections represented by a¢sales

(4) Does not include estimated collections from poitfothat are zero bas

(5) Total estimated collections refer to the actualaaesth collections, including cash sales, plus egéohremaining
collections.

We do not anticipate collecting the majority of fhechased principal amounts. Accordingly, theed#hce
between the carrying value of the portfolios areldghoss receivables is not indicative of futurafice income from
these accounts acquired for liquidation. Since welpased these accounts at significant discourtsnticipate
collecting only a portion of the face amounts.

For the year ended September 30, 2010, we recajfimnce income of $1.7 million under the cosorary
method because we collected $1.7 million in exoésair purchase price on certain of these portfolin addition,
we earned $43.9 million of finance income underittterest method based on actuarial computationishyn turn,
are based on actual collections during the penmtamn what we project to collect in future perio@sring the year
ended September 30, 2010, we purchased portfolibsanw aggregate purchase price of $8.0 milliorhwitface
value (gross contracted amount) of $269.1 million.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-09, 8gibsnt Events (“Topic 855”): Amendments to Certain
Recognition and Disclosure Requirements. The amentbwremove the requirement for an SEC registoant t
disclose the date through which subsequent evesnts @valuated as this requirement would have pgatbnt
conflicted with SEC reporting requirements. Remafahe disclosure requirement is not expectedferathe
nature or timing of subsequent events evaluatien®pmed by the Company. This ASU became effeaijven
issuance.

In December 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-17, $otidations (Topic 810) — Improvements to Financial
Reporting by Enterprises Involved with Variabledrgst Entities.” ASU 2009-17 generally represemnesvision to
former FASB Interpretation No. 46 (Revised Decentgd3), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entfieand
changes how a reporting entity determines whemétyehat is insufficiently capitalized or is not
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controlled through voting (or similar rights) shddde consolidated. ASU 2009-17 also requires artiggoentity to
provide additional disclosures about its involvemeith variable interest entities and any signifitahanges in risk
exposure due to that involvement. ASU 2009-17 fisatifve for fiscal years beginning after Novembgr 2009 and
for interim periods within the first annual repogiperiod. The Company does not believe that tioptamh of ASU
2009-17 will have a significant effect on its colidated financial statements.

Inflation

We believe that inflation has not had a materigdact on our results of operations for the yeargdnd
September 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MagkRisk

We are exposed to various types of market riskénrtormal course of business, including the imp#aiterest
rate changes and changes in corporate tax ratemtérial change in these rates could adverselgtafier operating
results and cash flows. At September 30, 2010Raaeivables Financing Agreement, all of which igalde rate
debt, had an outstanding balance of $90.5 milllo25 basis-point increase in interest rates woaldehincreased
our annual interest expense by approximately $2Z&0h&sed on the average debt obligation outstartiirigg the
fiscal year. We do not currently invest in derivatifinancial or commodity instruments.
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Item 8. Financial Statements And Supplementary Data.

The Financial Statements of the Company, the Nb®to and the Report of Independent RegisterétdPu
Accounting Firms thereon required by this item appén this report on the pages indicated in thieviong index:

Index to Audited Financial Statements Page
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfing F-2
Consolidated Balance She— September 30, 2010 and 2C F-3
Consolidated Statements of Operati— Years ended September 30, 2010, 2009 and F-4
Consolidated Statements of Sharehol' Equity— Years ended September 30, 2010, 2009 and F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Fl— Years ended September 30, 2010, 2009 and F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem F-7

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants orcéenting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

An evaluation of the effectiveness of the Compartdisclosure controls and procedures (as defin&kamangs
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) as of the erti@period ended September 30, 2010 was carrigolyous
under the supervision and with the participatioowf chief executive officer and chief financiafioér. Based upon
that evaluation, our chief executive officer anée€ffinancial officer concluded that as of SeptemB@, 2010, our
disclosure controls and procedures were effectivensure (i) that information we are required sxhiise in reports
that we file or submit under the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarizddeported
within the time periods specified in the SEC’s susand forms and (ii) that such information is acalated and
communicated to management, including our presjdemtrder to allow timely decisions regarding rieqd
disclosure.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for estabj and maintaining adequate internal controf ove
financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15¢fdar the Exchange Act). Under the supervision aitid tive
participation of the Company’s management, inclgdia principal executive officer and principaldimcial officer,
the Company conducted an assessment of the effaeg of its internal control over financial repagt In making
this assessment, the Company used the criterfarsietoy the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohthe
Treadway Commission (“COSQ”) in Internal Control lrtegrated Framework. Based on management’s assassm
based on the criteria of the COSO, the Companyladed that, as of September 30, 2010, the Compéamgmal
control over financial reporting is effective aétieasonable assurance level.

The Companys internal control system was designed to provédsonable assurance regarding the reliabil
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantegenerally
accepted accounting principles in the U.S. The Gomgjs internal control over financial reporting lindes those
policies and procedures that:

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records thateasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet th
transactions and dispositions of the assets oftdmpany;

(i) provide reasonable assurance that transactiomsecorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with accourgiiciples generally accepted in the U.S., and thegipts
and expenditures of the Company are being madein@gcordance with authorization of management and
directors of the Company; and
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(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding priwemr timely detection of unauthorized acquisitioise
or disposition of the Comparg/assets that could have a material effect ondhedlidated financial statemer

Our independent registered public accounting fi@rant Thornton LLP, audited the Compasiinternal contre
over financial reporting as of September 30, 20idtheir report dated December 14, 2010 is includedis
Item 9A.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reportng

There have not been any changes in the Compartgimal controls over financial reporting (as dedirie
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) thatuoed during the Company’s fourth fiscal quartatthave
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenglly affect, the Company’s internal control o¥i@ancial
reporting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Asta Funding, Inc.

We have audited Asta Funding, Inc. and subsidiafties “Company”) internal control over financiaporting
as of September 30, 2010, based on criteria eshedaliininternal Control — Integrated Framewoitsued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd@ommission (COSO). The Company’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal cohbver financial reporting and for its assessnudrihe
effectiveness of internal control over financighogting, included in the accompanying Managemehitiaual
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporti@gir responsibility is to express an opinion o @ompany’s
internal control over financial reporting basedoam audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadgdof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBoa
(United States). Those standards require that e g@hd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether effective internal control over financieporting was maintained in all material respects. &udit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control dugincial reporting, assessing the risk that aemaltweakness
exists, testing and evaluating the design and ¢ipgraffectiveness of internal control based onabsessed risk,
and performing such other procedures as we comsldercessary in the circumstances. We believethaudit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesass
regarding the reliability of financial reportingathe preparation of financial statements for exdepurposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfeez A company’s internal control over finanaiaporting
includes those policies and procedures that (Iajpeto the maintenance of records that, in reasiendetail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the company; (2) idmveasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as ngctsparmit preparation of financial statementadcordance wit
generally accepted accounting principles, andréwdipts and expenditures of the company are beadg only in
accordance with authorizations of management amdtdis of the company; and (3) provide reasonasdeirance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauitted acquisition, use, or disposition of the comps assets that
could have a material effect on the financial stegets.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or dete
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjecheorisk that
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesdlitions, or that the degree of compliance wWithpolicies
or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Asta Funding, Inc. and subsidiariesintained, in all material respects, effectivielinal control
over financial reporting as of September 30, 2@H3ed on criteria establishediiernal Control-Integrated
Frameworkissued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boar
(United States), the consolidated balance shedistaf Funding, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Septerd®e2010 and
2009 and the related consolidated statements sabpes, stockholders’ equity and comprehensivernmne, and
cash flows for each of the years in the three-pesiod ended September 30, 2010, and our repartidat
December 14, 2010, expressed an unqualified opinion

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP

New York, New York
December 14, 2010
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Iltem 9B. Other Information.
None.

PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Goventz.

Directors and Executive Officers

Information contained under the caption “Directdsgecutive Officers, and Corporate Governance”un o
definitive Proxy Statement, to be filed with therfmission on or before January 28, 2011, is incaigal by
reference in response to this Iltem 10.

Item 11. Executive Compensatior

Information contained under the caption “Executi@npensation” in our definitive Proxy Statementhéo
filed with the Commission on or before JanuaryZ®l1, is incorporated by reference in responshisoltem 11.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ahinagement and Related Stockholder Matte

Information contained under the caption “Securityr@rship of Certain Beneficial Owners and Managefnen
in our definitive Proxy Statement, to be filed witte Commission on or before January 28, 201hdsrporated by
reference in response to this ltem 12.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independence

Information contained under the caption “Certaitaenships and Related Transactions” in our d#tfiai
Proxy Statement, to be filed with the Commissioroobefore January 28, 2011, is incorporated bgregfce in
response to this Item 13.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Service

Information contained under the caption “Principatounting Fees and Services” in our definitivex§ro
Statement to be filed with the Commission on oobeflanuary 28, 2011 is incorporated by referemcesponse to
this ltem 14.

Part IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule

(a) The following documents are filed as part @ tieport

Exhibit
Number
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation.(]
3.2 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation
3.3 Bylaws.(2)
10.1  Asta Funding, Inc 1995 Stock Option Plan as Ame(itle
10.2 Asta Funding, Inc. 2002 Stock Option Plan
10.3 Asta Funding, Inc. Equity Compensation Plar
10.4 Third Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agee¢iated May 11, 2004, between the Company
and Israel Discount Bank of NY/(!
10.5 Fourth Amended and Restated Loan and Security Aggaedated July 10, 2006, between the Company
and Israel Discount Bank of NY(
10.6 Reservec
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Exhibit
Number

10.7

10.8
109
10.10

1011
1012
10.13
10.14
10.15
10.16
10.17

10.18
10.19

10.20
10.21

10.22
10.23
10.24
10.25
10.26
10.27

10.28
10.29
10.30
10.31
10.32
10.33
10.34
10.35
141

21.1
231

Receivables Finance Agreement dated March 2, 266vden the Company and the Bank of Montreal
(10)

Subservicing Agreement between the Company an8uheervicer dated March 2, 2007(.

Purchase and Sale Agreement dated February 5, 2IX

Third Amendment to the Fourth Amended and Restiateah and Security Agreement dated March 30,
2007, between the Company and Israel Discount Ba)

Fourth Amendment to the Fourth Amended and Restatad and Security Agreement dated May 10,
2007, between the Company and Israel Discount B&)

Fifth Amendment to the Fourth Amended and Resthteth and Security Agreement dated June 27,
2007, between the Company and Israel Discount Bah)

First Amendment to the Receivables Finance Agree¢unaied July 1, 2007 between the Company and
Bank of Montreal(15

Sixth Amendment to the Fourth Amended and Resfateth and Security Agreement dated December 4,
2007, between the Company and Israel Discount B#)

Second Amendment to the Receivables Financing Ageeedated December 27, 2007(

Third Amendment to the Receivables Financing Agredlated May 19, 2008(1

Amended and Restated Servicing Agreement dated18a2008 between the Company and The Bank of
Montreal(19)

Subordinated Promissory Note between Asta Fundiitogand Asta Group, Inc. dated April 29, 2008(
Seventh Amendment to the Fourth Amended and Reéstaten Agreement, Dated February 20, 2009
between the Company and IDB(Z

Form of Amended and Restated Revolving Note betwesta Funding and IDB, as lending agent(
Fourth Amendment to the Receivables Financing Agee dated February 20, 2009 between the
Company and Bank of Montreal(2

Subordinated Guarantor Security Agreement dateduaep 20, 2009 to Bank of Montreal(2
Subordinated Limited Recourse Guaranty Agreemetetddaebruary 20, 2009(2

Subordinated Guarantor Security Agreement dateduaep 20, 2009 to Asta Group, Inc.(z
Subordinated Limited Recourse Guaranty Agreemetetddaebruary 20, 2009 to Asta Group.(

Form of Intercreditor Agreement between Asta Fugdind IDB as lending agent(2

Amended and Restated Management Agreement, datddasuary 16, 2009, between Palisades
Collection, L.L.C., and [*].(29

Amended and Restated Master Servicing Agreemeteddes of January 16, 2009, between Palisades
Collection, L.L.C., and [*](30

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Masteri&egvAgreement, dated as of September 16,
2007, by and among Palisades Collection, L.L.Cd, [&h and [*](31)

Consulting Services Agreement dated November 309 Be@tween Cameron E. Williams and the
Company.(32

Loan Agreement Between Asta Funding and Bank Ledatéed December 14, 2009.(:

Indemnification agreement between Asta Funding@kts Family Investors LLC.(34

Fifth Amendment to the Receivables Financing Agreendated October 26, 2010 between the Company
and Bank of Montreal (3¢

Omnibus Termination Agreement, by and among Palis@dtquisition XVI, LLC, BMO Capital Markets
Corp., as collateral agent, Asta Group, Incorparad@d each guarantor set forth therein.

Lease agreement between the Company and ESL 20@lated August 2, 2010(3

Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers(:

Subsidiaries of the Registrar

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing*
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Exhibit
Number

311 Certification of Registrant’s Chief Executive O#ig Gary Stern, pursuant to Section 302 of the Swb-
Oxley Act of 2002.*

31.2 Certification of Registrant’s Chief Financial Offic Robert J. Michel, pursuant to Section 302 ef th
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002.*

32.1 Certification of the Registrant’s Chief Executivéfi€er, Gary Stern, pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002.*

32.2 Certification of the Registrant’'s Chief FinanciaffiCer, Robert J. Michel, pursuant to Section 90éhe
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002.*

* Filed herewitr

(1) Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit to Astading’'s Registration Statement on Form SB-2 (File
No. 3:-97212).

(2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Astading’s Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the yeaded
September 30, 199

(3) Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit to Astading’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the ¢hre
months ended March 31, 20(

(4) Not used
(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astading's Current Report oForm &K filed May 19, 2004
(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadin¢'s Current Report oForm &K filed March 3, 2006
(7) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadin¢' s Current Report oForm &K filed July 12, 2006
(8) Not usec
(9) Not usec

(10) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astading’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the éhre
months ended March 31, 20(

(11) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astiadiing's Current Report oForm &K filed February 9, 200

(12) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Astadiing’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the FEhre
Months Ended March 31, 20t

(13) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Asimdiing’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the Ehre
Months Ended March 31, 20t

(14) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astimdiing’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the Ehre
Months Ended June 30, 20

(15) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Astadiing’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the FEhre
Months Ended June 30, 20(

(16) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadiing’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed Decembe@y
2007

(17) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Astadiing’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the Ehre
Months Ended March 31, 20t

(18) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Astading’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 20(

(19) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Astimding’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thesthr
months ended March 31, 20

(20) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to Astadin¢ s Current Report oForm &K filed May 1, 200¢

(21) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to Astmding’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 20(
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(22) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to Astading’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 20(

(23) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Astading’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 20(

(24) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to Astading’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 20(

(25) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to Astading’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 20(

(26) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to Astading’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 20(

(27) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to Astamding’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 20(

(28) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to Astading’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 20(

(29) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to Astading’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 20(

(30) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to Astading’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 20(

(31) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to Astmding’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 20(

(32) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Astadiing’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December
2009

(33) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astading’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed Decemb@r
2009

(34) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.32 to Astading’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 20(

(35) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadiing’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed November
2010

(36) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Astadiing’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed NovemBér
2010

(37) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Astiadiin¢’'s Current Report oForm ¢-K filed August 5, 201(

(38) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14.1 to Astadiing’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeadeah
September 30, 20(
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Exchange Act, the Registrant caused tipertdo be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

ASTA FUNDING, INC.

By: /s/ Gary Ster

Gary Stern
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Dated: December 14, 2010

Pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange Aistréport has been signed below by the followiagspns o
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities@nthe dates indicated:

Signature Title Date
/sl Gary Stern Chairman of the Board, President, and December 14, 20!
Gary Sterr Chief Executive Officer
/sl Robert J. Michel Chief Financial Officer Principal December 14, 20!
Robert J. Miche Financial Officer and Accounting Offic
s/ Arthur Stern Chairman Emeritus and Director December 14, 20!
Arthur Stern
/sl Herman Badillo Director December 14, 20!
Herman Badillc
/s/ Edward Celano Director December 14, 20!
Edward Celan:
/sl Harvey Leibowitz Director December 14, 20

Harvey Leibowitz

/s/ David Slackman Director December 14, 20!
David Slackmar

/s/ Louis A. Piccolo Director December 14, 20!
Louis A. Piccola

47




Table of Contents

ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008




Table of Contents

ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Contents

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfdinm

Consolidated Balance sheets as of September 30,@i200¢

Consolidated Statements of operations for the yeded September 30, 2010, 2009 and :
Consolidated Statements of stockhol’ equity for the years ended September 30, 2010, 2662 00¢
Consolidated Statements of cash flows for the yeaded September 30, 2010, 2009 and :

Notes to consolidated financial stateme

Page
F-2
F-3
F-4

F-6
F-7




Table of Contents

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Asta Funding, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Asta Funding, Inc. and subsidiaries (t
“Company”) as of September 30, 2010 and 2009 amdelated consolidated statements of operatiooskisblders’
equity and comprehensive income, and cash flowsdoh of the years in the three-year period enéptetber 30,
2010. These consolidated financial statementsharesisponsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesgesotidated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting Oversighagio
(United States). Those standards require that e g@hd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether the financial statements are free of materisstatement. An audit includes examining, ¢esa basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosurtrifinancial statements. An audit also includeessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, as well as evaluating thalbfirancial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteeaferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects, the
financial position of Asta Funding, Inc. and sulsiés as of September 30, 2010 and 2009 and sudsef their
operations and their cash flows for each of thedlyears ended September 30, 2010, in conformityagicounting
principles generally accepted in the United StafeSmerica.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boar
(United States), Asta Funding, Inc. and subsidsaiigernal control over financial reporting asSgptember 30,
2010, based on criteria establishedniternal Control-Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis&DSO) and our report dated December 14, 2010=egpd
an unqualified opinion.

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP

New York, New York
December 14, 2010
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets

September 30,

2010 2009
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel $ 84,235,00 $ 2,385,00
Restricted cas 1,304,00! 2,130,001
Consumer receivables acquired for liquidation @trealizable value 147,031,00 208,261,00
Due from third party collection agencies and attys 3,528,001 2,573,001
Prepaid and income taxes receive 196,00( 47,727,00
Furniture and equipment (net of accumulated deatieci of $3,006,000 in 2010
and $2,758,000 in 200! 338,00( 538,00(
Deferred income taxe 18,762,00 24,072,00
Other asset 3,770,00! 3,070,00!
Total asset $259,164,00  $290,756,00
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities
Debt $ 90,483,00 $122,622,00
Subordinated del— related party 4,386,001 8,246,001
Other liabilities 2,105,001 2,166,001
Dividends payabl 292,00( 286,00(
Total liabilities 97,266,00 133,320,00
Commitments and contingenci
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; authorized 5,00),3sued — none Common
stock, $.01 par value, authorized 30,000,000 shassed and outstanding
14,600,423 shares in 2010 and 14,272,357 shag&)® 146,00( 143,00(
Additional paic-in capital 72,717,00 70,189,00
Retained earning 89,026,00 87,058,00
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net offiretaxes 9,00( 46,00(
Total stockholder equity 161,898,00 157,436,00
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $259,164,00  $290,756,00

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Revenues:
Finance income, nt
Other income

Expenses

General and administrative expen

Interest expense (Related Party — 2010, $518,000;
2009, $515,000; 2008, $154,0(

Impairments of consumer receivables acquired furidiation

Income (loss) before income tax
Income tax expense (benel

Net income (loss
Basic net income (loss) per shat
Diluted net income (loss) per shar

Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

Year Ended September 30,

2010

2009

2008

$45,631,00 $ 70,156,00 $115,295,00

218,00 199,00 255,00
45,849,00 70,355,00  115,550,00
23,211,00 2591500  29,561,00
4,368,001 8,452,000  17,881,00
13,029,00  183,500,00 _ 53,160,00
40,608,00  217,867,00 100,602,00
5,241,000 (147,512,00)  14,948,00
2,112,000 _ (56,787,00) 6,119,001
$ 3,129,000 $ (90,725,00) $ 8,829,001
$ 0.2 $ (6.3 $ 0.62
$ 02: $ (6.36 $ 0.61
14,492,21 14,272,42  14,138,65
14,534,98 14,272,42  14,55334

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

For the years ended September 30, 2010, 2009 and&0

Accumulated

Additional Other
Common Stock Paid-in Retained = Comprehensive
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Total

Balance, September 30, 20C 13,918,15 $139,00( $65,030,00 $172,366,00 $ — $237,535,00
Exercise of option 300,00( 3,00¢ 422,00( 425,00(
Restricted stock grante 58,00( 1,00( (2,000 —
Stock based compensation expe 1,013,001 1,013,001
Tax benefit arising from exercise of non

qualified stock options and vesting of

restricted stocl 2,666,00! 2,666,00!
Dividends (2,270,00i) (2,270,001
Other comprehensive loss(net of tax bene

of $202,000 (297,000 (297,000
Net income 8,829,00! 8,829,00!
Balance, September 30, 20C 14,276,15 143,00( 69,130,00 178,925,00 (297,000 247,901,00
Exercise of option 53¢ 1,00( 1,00(
Restricted stock forfeite (4,339
Stock based compensation expe 984,00( 984,00(
Tax benefit arising from exercise of non-

qualified stock options and vesting of

restricted stocl 74,00( 74,00(
Dividends (1,142,001 (1,142,001
Other comprehensive income (net of tas

$233,000! 343,00( 343,00(
Net (loss) (90,725,00) (90,725,00)
Balance, September 30, 20C 14,272,35 143,00( 70,189,00 87,058,00 46,00( 157,436,00
Exercise of option 328,06¢ 3,00¢ 867,00( 870,000t
Stock based compensation expe 1,189,00i! 1,189,001
Tax benefit arising from exercise of 1-

qualified stock options and vesting of

restricted stocl 472,00( 472,00(
Dividends (1,261,00i) (1,161,001
Other comprehensive loss (net of tax benefit

of $24,000, (37,000 (37,000
Net income 3,129,00! 3,129,00!
Balance, September 30, 201 14,600,42 $146,00( $72,717,00 $ 89,026,00 $ 9,00C $161,898,00
Comprehensive income (loss) is as follows:

2010 2009 2008

Net income (loss $3,129,000 $(90,725,00) $8,829,00!
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax-fpre&iurrency

translatior (37,000 343,00( (297,000
Comprehensive income (los $3,092,000 $(90,382,00) $8,532,001
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li $ 9000 $ 46,000 $ (297,000

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by
operating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic
Deferred income taxe
Impairments of consumer receivables acquired for
liquidation
Stock based compensati
Changes in
Income taxes payable and receive
Due from third party collection agencies and attgs
Other asset
Other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of consumer receivables acquired fordaian

Principal payments received from collection of aonsr
receivables acquired for liquidatic

Principal payments received from collections repnésd
by sales of consumer receivables acquired for
liquidation

Effect of foreign exchange on consumer receivables
acquired for liquidatiol

Capital expenditure

Net cash provided by investing activiti

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti
Tax benefit arising from exercise of non-qualifidck
options
Change in restricted ca
Dividends paic
Repayments of debt, n

(Repayments) advance under subordinated debt -tede

party

Net cash used in financing activiti
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivake
Effect of foreign exchange on cash

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of yei
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid for
Interest (Related Party: 2010 — $568,000; 2009 —
$472,000; 200(— $112,000)

Income taxe:

Year Ended September 30

2010 2009 2008
$ 3,129,000 $(90,725,00) $ 8,829,00!
1,291,001 1,664,001 1,278,001
5,310,001 (8,505,001 (2,634,001
13,029,00  183,500,00 53,160,00
1,189,001 984,00 1,013,001
47,531,00  (54,042,00) (1,846,001
(955,000 2,497,001 (161,000)
(1,683,001 (268,000 1,349,001
(79,000  (2,193,00) (3,725,00))
68,762,00  32,912,00 57,263,00
(7,989,00)  (19,552,00)  (49,886,00)
54,211,00  71,936,00 81,645,00
2,076,001 5,317,001 11,034,00
(85,000) (542,000 658,00
(108,000() (187,000 (361,000
4810500  56,972,00 43,090,00
870,00 1,00( 425,00
472,00 74,00 2,666,001
826,00 917,00 2,647,001
(1,155,00)  (1,427,00) (2,256,001
(32,166,00)  (90,695,00)  (113,001,00)
(3,860,001) — 8,246,001
(35,013,00)  (91,130,00)  (101,273,00)
81,854,00 (1,246,001 (920,00()
(4,000 8,00( 18,00(
2,385,001 3,623,001 4,525,00!
$84,23500 $ 2,385,000 $ 3,623,00
$ 4,542,000 $ 9,082,000 $ 19,784,00
$ 2,052,000 $ 5,887,000 $ 8,282,00

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2010 and 2009

Note A—THE COMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PoLICIES
[1] The Company:

Asta Funding, Inc., together with its wholly owngignificant operating subsidiaries Palisades Ctibed_LC,
Palisades Acquisition XVI, LLC (“Palisades XVI"),ATIV Recovery Solutions LLC (“VATIV”) and other
subsidiaries, not all wholly owned, and not consdematerial (the “Company”), is engaged in theitess of
purchasing, managing for its own account and senyidistressed consumer receivables, includinggethoff
receivables, semi-performing receivables and petifog receivables. The primary charged-off receigalare
accounts that have been written-off by the origireand may have been previously serviced by dalle@gencies.
Semi-performing receivables are accounts wheredhéor is currently making partial or irregular rifug
payments, but the accounts may have been writtelyahe originators. Performing receivables arecants where
the debtor is making regular monthly payments thay or may not have been delinquent in the pastr&ised
consumer receivables are the unpaid debts of iha@ls to banks, finance companies and other cpeaviders. A
large portion of the Company’s distressed consusxgivables are MasterCa?d Visa®, and other credit card
accounts which were charged-off by the issuerador-payment. The Company acquires these portfatios
substantial discounts from their face values. Tisealints are based on the characteristics (isaoeount size,
debtor location and age of debt) of the underlydngounts of each portfolio.

The consolidated financial statements are pregaradcordance with accounting principles generatigepted
in the United States (“U.S. GAAP”) and industry giiees.

[1A] Liquidity:

The Company’s cash requirements have been andamtinue to be significant. In the past we haveetdejed
upon external financing to acquire consumer ret#@m fund operating expenses, interest and indaxes. If
approved, dividends paid is also a significantafseash. As our revolving debt level has decreageddependency
on external sources to fund the acquisition offpbics debt, pay operating expenses, dividendsyést and taxes,
greatly reduced. On December 14, 2009, the Eigintler"dment to the Fourth Amended and Restated Loan
Agreement (the “IDB Credit Facility”) with a condium of banks (“The IDB Bank Grouptas repaid and replac
with a short-term credit facility (the “Short-Ter@redit Facility”) with another lending institutiom June 2010, the
Company received an aggregate tax refund of apmabely $52.7 million. As of November 30, 2010, the
outstanding amount on the Bank of Montreal (“BM®itility (“Receivables Financing Agreement”) thatdnced
the $6.9 billion in face value receivables for aghase price of $300 million, (the “Portfolio Puaste”) is
$80.0 million. We continue to pay down the balafioen the collections of the Portfolio Purchase.

Net collections decreased $45.5 million or 30.986rfi$147.4 million in fiscal year 2009 to $101.9lroi in
fiscal year 2010. Although the Company’s collectiaeteriorated from the prior year, the Companiebes its net
cash collections over the next twelve months, cediplith its current liquid cash balances, will éfisient to cove
its operating expenses, service debt and pay stte3ee Note D — Debt and Subordinated Debt-reladety, for
further information.

[2] Principles of consolidation:
The consolidated financial statements include twants of the Company and its wholly owned subsiels.
All significant intercompany balances and transattihave been eliminated in consolidation.
[3] Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash:

The Company considers all highly liquid investmeanith a maturity of three months or less at theedxt
purchase to be cash equivalents.
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2010 and 2009

Note A—THE COMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PoLiciEs — (CONTINUED)

[3] Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash:(Continued)

The Company maintains cash balances in depositstittitions mandated by the Company’s lenders.
Management periodically evaluates the creditwogkinof such institutions. Cash balances exceed&ddeposit
Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) limits from time tone. Cash balances at September 30, 2010 weréasitibfly in
excess of these limits.

On February 5, 2007, Palisades Acquisition XV, LlaGyholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, enténéal
a Purchase and Sale Agreement (the “Portfolio RseiAgreement”) , under which we agreed to acdbee
Portfolio Purchase for a purchase price of $300ianil To finance this purchase, now owned by PdisaxVI, the
Company entered into a Receivables Financing Agee¢mith BMO as the funding source, consisting elbtdwvith
full recourse only to Palisades XVI. As part of fReceivables Financing Agreement, all proceedsvedeas a
result of the net collections from the Portfolior€hase are to be applied to interest and prinaptie underlying
loan until the loan is fully paid.

The restricted cash at September 30, 2010 repeesasi on hand, substantially all of which is desigd to be
paid to our lender subsequent to September 30,. Z0fDlender has mandated in which depositorytingins the
cash is to be maintained.

[4] Income recognition, Impairments and Accretablgeld adjustments:
Income Recognition

The Company accounts for its investment in consueegivables acquired for liquidation using therast
method under the guidance of Financial Accountitem&ards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Cadifion
(“ASC") 310, Receivables — Loans and Debt Secwgifiequired with Deteriorated Credit Quality, (“ASS20"). In
ASC 310 static pools of accounts are establishkds& pools are aggregated based on certain conmskasriteria.
Each static pool is recorded at cost and is aceduior as a single unit for the recognition of imeg principal
payments and loss provision.

Once a static pool is established for a quarteliyidual receivable accounts are not added to theé funless
replaced by the seller) or removed from the ponlgss sold or returned to the seller). ASC 310ireguhat the
excess of the contractual cash flows over expesasHt flows not be recognized as an adjustmentvefies or
expense or on the balance sheet. ASC 310 inifi@bzes the internal rate of return (“IRR"), estiethwhen the
accounts receivable are purchased, as the basialieequent impairment testing. Significant inoeeas actual, or
expected future cash flows are recognized prosgagtihrough an upward adjustment of the IRR ovposdfolio’s
remaining life. Any increase to the IRR then becsitiee new benchmark for impairment testing. Unds€/310,
rather than lowering the estimated IRR if the aultn estimates are not received or projected teebeived, the
carrying value of a pool would be written down taimain the then current IRR.

Finance income is recognized on cost recovery @i after the carrying value has been fully rexred
through collections or amounts written down.

Impairments and accretable yield adjustments

The Company accounts for its impairments in acamdavith ASC 310, which provides guidance on how to
account for differences between contractual an@ebgal cash flows from an investor’s initial investrin loans or
debt securities acquired in a transfer if thosted#nces are attributable, at least in part, tditoiality. Increases i
expected cash flows are recognized prospectivebutih an adjustment of the internal rate of retunile decrease
in expected cash flows are recognized as impairsnémt impairment of approximately $13 million wasorded in
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010, alleglat the Portfolio Purchase, which became a cost
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2010 and 2009

Note A—THE COMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PoLiciEs — (CONTINUED)

[4] Income recognition, Impairments and Accretabjgeld adjustments: — (Continued)

recovery portfolio in the quarter ended June 3082@s a result of the slower economy and otheofadhat
resulted in slower collections on certain portfsjianpairments of $183.5 million were recordedistél year 2009,
of which $108.5 million related to the interest ht portfolios and $75.0 million related to costaeery method
portfolios. During fiscal year 2008, all of the $83nillion in impairment charges were recordednigiiest method
portfolios. Finance income is not recognized ort cesovery method portfolios until the cost of fy@tfolio is fully
recovered. Collection projections are performedboth interest method and cost recovery method glas. With
regard to the cost recovery portfolios, if collectiprojections indicate the carrying value will ibetrecovered a
write down in value is required. There were no atadvle yield adjustments recorded in the fiscatyeaded
September 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008.

The recognition of income under ASC 310 is depehdarthe Company having the ability to develop
reasonable expectations of both the timing and atofucash flows to be collected. In the event@oenpany
cannot develop a reasonable expectation as tothettiming and amount of cash flows expected todikected,
ASC 310 permits the change to the cost recoverpotetDue to uncertainties related to the timinghef collection:
of the older judgments purchased in this portfakoa result of the economic environment, the ldck@asonable
delivery of media requests, the lack of validatidicertain account components, and the sale gbttingary servicer
(which was commonly owned by the seller), the Comypdetermined that it no longer had the abilitgléwvelop a
reasonable expectation of the timing of the caslvslto be collected and therefore, transferredPngfolio
Purchase to the cost recovery method in the quaniged June 30, 2008. The Company will recognizenre only
after it has recovered its carrying value, whichpaSeptember 30, 2010 was approximately $91.8omilThere
can be no assurance as to when or if the carrnahgewvill be recovered.

The Company’s analysis of the timing and amourdash flows to be generated by its portfolio purelsaare
based on the following attributes:

« the type of receivable, the location of thétde and the number of collection agencies preWoatgempting
to collect the receivables in the portfolio. Then@any has found that there are better states to tgllect
receivables and the Company factors in both battdrworse states when establishing their initiahdéow
expectations

« the average balance of the receivables inflesmour analysis in that lower average balancdgbiog tend to
be more collectible in the short-term and highesrage balance portfolios are more appropriatehfr t
Company’s law suit strategy and thus yield bettsults over the longer term. As the Company has
significant experience with both types of balandeis, able to factor these variables into itsialiexpected
cash flows

« the age of the receivables, the number of day charge-off, any payments since charge-off,the credit
guidelines of the credit originator also repredantors taken into consideration in our estimapoocess .
For example, older receivables might be more diffiand/orrequire more time and effort to colle

* past history and performance of similar assetsiemtjuAs the Company purchases portfolios of likeeds, i
accumulates a significant historical data baseneriéndencies of debtor repayments and factoirttasts
initial expected cash flow:

» the Compan’s ability to analyze accounts and resell accourasrheet its criterie

« jobs or property of the debtors found within politie. With our business model, this is of partict
importance. Debtors with jobs or property are nii&ly to repay their obligation through the lawsui
strategy and, conversely, debtors without jobsroperty are less likely to repay their obligatidine
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2010 and 2009

Note A—THE COMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PoLiciEs — (CONTINUED)

[4] Income recognition, Impairments and Accretabjgeld adjustments: — (Continued)

Company believes that debtors with jobs or prigpare more likely to repay because courts havedataal
the debtor must pay the debt. Ultimately, the debith property will pay to clear title or releaadien. The
Company also believes that these debtors genenddilyt take longer to repay and that is factored itg
initial expected cash flows; ai

« credit standards of issut

The Company acquires accounts that have experiefetedoration of credit quality between originatiand
the date of its acquisition of the accounts. Thewm paid for a portfolio of accounts reflects determination that
it is probable we will be unable to collect all ain¢s due according to the portfolio of accountsitcactual terms.
The Company considers the expected payments ainthésthe amount and timing of undiscounted expkcte
principal, interest and other cash flows for eaotpuéred portfolio coupled with expected cash fldvesn accounts
available for sales. The excess of this amount thescost of the portfolio, representing the exa#ghe accounts’
cash flows expected to be collected over the ampaint, is accreted into income recognized on fieaeceivables
accounted for on the interest method over the dgpgaemaining life of the portfolio.

The Company believes we have significant experiémeequiring certain distressed consumer recegvabl
portfolios at a significant discount to the amoactually owed by underlying debtors. The Comparguaes these
portfolios only after both qualitative and quarttita analyses of the underlying receivables aréopaed and a
calculated purchase price is paid so that it bebats estimated cash flow offers an adequaterreturacquisition
costs after servicing expenses. Additionally, wbhensidering larger portfolio purchases of accoumtqortfolios
from issuers with whom the Company has limited eigmee, it has the added benefit of solicitingliisd party
collection agencies and attorneys for their inputiquidation rates and, at times, incorporate sopht into the
estimates it uses for its expected cash flows.

As a result of the a challenging economic environinaad the impact it has had on collections, fatfptio
purchases acquired in fiscal year 2009 the Compatgnded our time frame of the expectation of redog 100%
of its invested capital within a 24-39 month periozn an 18-28 month period, and the expectatioreodvering
130-140% over 7 years which from the previous 5 papectation. The 2009 time frame of expectatiange
remained in force for fiscal year 2010. The Companytinely monitors these expectations againsatiieal cash
flows and, in the event the cash flows are belopeetations and the Company believes there areasmmns relating
to mere timing differences or explainable delaysksas can occur particularly when the court sysseimvolved)
for the reduced collections, an impairment is rdedron portfolios accounted for on the interestoet
Conversely, in the event the cash flows are in &xoé its expectations and the reason is due faginthe Compan
would defer the “excess” collection as deferreceraie.

[5] Commissions and fees:

Commissions and fees are the contractual commisgiamed by third party collection agencies anutadtys,
and direct costs associated with the collectioarefjenerally court costs. The Company expectotdinue to
purchase portfolios and utilize third party collentagencies and attorney networks.

[6] Furniture, equipment and leasehold improvements

Furniture and equipment is stated at cost. Depieniés provided using the straight-line method roe
estimated useful lives of the assets (5 to 7 yeAmaprtization on leasehold improvements is prouitg the
straight line-method of the remaining life of tlespective lease. An accelerated depreciation méshaskd for tax
purposes.
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2010 and 2009

Note A—THE COMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PoLiciEs — (CONTINUED)
[7] Income taxes:

Deferred federal and state taxes arise from (Dgaition of finance income collected for tax purpssbut not
yet recognized for financial reporting; (ii) proia for impairments/credit losses, all resultingiming differences
between financial accounting and tax reporting, @icamortization of leasehold improvements réigigl in timing
differences between financial accounting and taorméng.

[8] Net income (loss) per share:

Basic per share data is determined by dividingmetme by the weighted average shares outstandiriggdthe
period. Diluted per share data is computed by digidhet income by the weighted average sharesamdtistg,
assuming all dilutive potential common shares vigsaed. The assumed proceeds from the exercisautvel
options are calculated using the treasury stockatebased on the average market price for thegherio

The following table presents the computation ofibasd diluted per share data for the years ended
September 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008:

2010 2009 2008
Weighted Per Weighted Per Weighted Per
Net Average Share Net Average Share Net Average Share
Income Shares Amount Income Shares Amount Income Shares  Amount
Basic $3,129,001 14,492,21 $ 0.2Z $(90,725,00) 14,272,42 $ (6.3€) $8,829,001 14,138,65' $ 0.6Z
Dilutive effect of stock Option 42,767 — 414,69¢
Diluted $3,129,001 14,534,98 $ 0.27 $(90,725,00) 14,272,42 $ (6.3€) $8,829,001 14,553,34 $ 0.61

At September 30, 2010, 680,795 options at a weibhterage exercise price of $15.59 were not includé¢he
diluted earnings per share calculation as they astiedilutive. At September 30, 2009, 133,250 opgiat a
weighted average exercise price of $8.30 werenubtided in the diluted earnings per share calanads they were
anti-dilutive. At September 30, 2008, 400,160 amiat a weighted average exercise price of $18ef@ wot
included in the diluted earnings per share calmras they were anti-dilutive.

[9] Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia
United States of America requires management tceregkmates and assumptions that affect the repanwunts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of corgimgassets and liabilities at the date of the fir@rstatements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expensegdhaneporting period. With respect to income ggition unde
the interest method, the Company takes into coraide the relative credit quality of the underlyireceivables
constituting the portfolio acquired, the strategydlved to maximize the collections thereof, tmedirequired to
implement the collection strategy as well as ofhetors to estimate the anticipated cash flowsualctesults could
differ from those estimates including managemeegtimates of future cash flows and the resultdatation of
collections between principal and interest resgltimerefrom. Downward revisions to estimated céshd will
result in impairments.

[10] Stock-based compensation:

The Company accounts for stock-based employee awsafien under FASB ASC 718, CompensatiorSteck
Compensation, (“ASC 718"ASC 718 requires that compensation expense assdaidth stock options and vesti
of restricted stock awards be recognized in theeistant of operations.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2010 and 2009

Note A—THE COMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PoLiciEs — (CONTINUED)
[11] Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In February 2010, the Financial Accounting Standd&dard (“FASB”) issued ASU 2010-09, Subsequent
Events (“Topic 855"): Amendments to Certain Rectigniand Disclosure Requirements. The amendmenteve
the requirement for an SEC registrant to disclbsedate through which subsequent events were dgdlaa this
requirement would have potentially conflicted WBEC reporting requirements. Removal of the dise®su
requirement is not expected to affect the natutéing of subsequent events evaluations perforhyethe
Company. This ASU became effective upon issuance.

In December 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-17, Y0tidations (Topic 810) — Improvements to Financial
Reporting by Enterprises Involved with Variabledi@st Entities.” ASU 2009-17 generally representsvision to
former FASB Interpretation No. 46 (Revised Decentgd3), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entfieand
changes how a reporting entity determines whemétyehat is insufficiently capitalized or is nobntrolled
through voting (or similar rights) should be condated. ASU 2009-17 also requires a reporting edifprovide
additional disclosures about its involvement witttiable interest entities and any significant cteemnig risk
exposure due to that involvement. ASU 2009-17 fisotifve for fiscal years beginning after NovembBr 2009 and
for interim periods within the first annual repogiperiod. The Company does not believe that tioptamh of ASU
2009-17 will have a significant effect on its colidated financial statements.

[12] Reclassifications:

Certain items in prior years’ financial statememase been reclassified to conform to the curreat’ge
presentation.

Note B—CoNSUMER RECEIVABLES ACQUIRED FOR LIQUIDATION

Accounts acquired for liquidation are stated airthet estimated realizable value and consist milynaf
defaulted consumer loans to individuals throughbetcountry and in Central and South America.

The Company accounts for its investments in consueteivable portfolios, using either:

 the interest method; ¢
« the cost recovery metha

The Company accounts for its investment in finaoeivables using the interest method under thaaggie of
ASC 310. Under the guidance of ASC 310, static poblaccounts are established. These pools aregayfed base
on certain common risk criteria. Each static psakicorded at cost and is accounted for as a simgfiéor the
recognition of income, principal payments and lpssvision.

Once a static pool is established for a quarteliyidual receivable accounts are not added to twod unless
replaced by the seller) or removed from the ponlgss sold or returned to the seller). ASC310 meguihat the
excess of the contractual cash flows over expemst flows not be recognized as an adjustmentvehree or
expense or on the balance sheet. ASC310 initiedyzles the internal rate of return, referred tiR&s estimated
when the accounts receivable are purchased, dm#iefor subsequent impairment testing. Signifidareases in
actual or expected future cash flows may be re@eghprospectively through an upward adjustmerh@fiRR over
a portfolio’s remaining life. Any increase to tHeR then becomes the new benchmark for impairmstihte
Rather than lowering the estimated IRR if the aiits estimates are not received or projected teebeived, the
carrying value of a pool would be impaired, or venit down to maintain the then current IRR. Underittierest
method, income is recognized on the effective yir&thod based on the actual cash collected durpegiad and
future estimated cash flows and timing of suchemibns and the portfolio’s cost. Revenue arishognf collections
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in excess of anticipated amounts attributablentanigy differences is deferred until such time asvaaw results in a
change in the expected cash flows. The estimatedefeash flows are reevaluated quarterly.

The Company uses the cost recovery method wheectiolhs on a particular pool of accounts cannot be
reasonably predicted. Under the cost recovery ntetho income is recognized until the cost of thefptio has
been fully recovered. A pool can become fully anzed (zero carrying balance on the balance shewt wtill
generating cash collections. In this case, all cadlections are recognized as revenue when redeive

The Company’s extensive liquidating experiencaithe field of distressed credit card receivables,
telecommunication receivables, consumer loan raté®s, retail installment contracts, consumer weises, and
auto deficiency receivables. The Company usegttieedst method for accounting for asset acquigstigithin these
classes of receivables when it believes it canoressly estimate the timing of the cash flows. losth situations
where the Company diversifies its acquisitions ittoer asset classes where the Company does reggsothe san
expertise or history, or the Company cannot reasgrestimate the timing of the cash flows, the Camputilizes
the cost recovery method of accounting for thosef@ams of receivables. At September 30, 2010,ragipnately
$46.3 million of the consumer receivables acqufoediquidation are accounted for using the intérasthod, while
approximately $100.7 million are accounted for gsime cost recovery method, of which $91.8 millisn
concentrated in one portfolio, the Portfolio Puissha

The Company aggregates portfolios of receivablgsieed sharing specific common characteristics Whiere
acquired within a given quarter. The Company culyesonsiders for aggregation portfolios of accaypurchased
within the same fiscal quarter, that generally ntketfollowing characteristics:

* Same issuer/originata

« Same underlying credit qualit

« similar geographic distribution of the accout

« similar age of the receivable; a

« Same type of asset class (credit cards, teleconuation, etc.’

The Company uses a variety of qualitative and qtaive factors to estimate collections and thangrthereof
This analysis includes the following variables:

« the number of collection agencies previously attémgpto collect the receivables in the portfol

« the average balance of the receivables, d®higalances might be more difficult to collect isHow
balances might not be cost effective to coll

« the age of the receivables, as older recedgaivlight be more difficult to collect or might les$ cost
effective. On the other hand, the passage of fimegrtain circumstances, might result in highdleotions
due to changing life events of some individual ded

« past history of performance of similar ass
« time since char¢-off;

e payments made since chz-off;

« the credit originator and its credit guidelin

« our ability to analyze accounts and resell accoti@smeet our criteria for resa
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« the locations of the debtors, as there arebstates to attempt to collect in and ultimately Company has
better predictability of the liquidations and theected cash flows. Conversely, there are alsestahere
the liquidation rates are not as favorable andithfetctored into our cash flow analys

« jobs or property of the debtors found within politfe. In our business model, this is of particutaportance
Debtors with jobs or property are more likely tpag their obligation and conversely, debtors wittjobs or
property are less likely to repay their obligatiangd

« the ability to obtain timely customer statementsrfrthe original issue

The Company obtains and utilizes, as appropriafgjtj including but not limited to monthly collewti
projections and liquidation rates, from our thiaty collection agencies and attorneys, as furhe@tentiary matte|
to assist in evaluating and developing collectiwatsgies and in evaluating and modeling the exgokcash flows
for a given portfolio.

The following tables summarize the changes in tiarize sheet of the investment in receivable pato
during the following periods.

For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

Interest Cost
Method Recovery
Portfolios Portfolios Total
Balance, beginning of peric $ 70,650,00 $137,611,00 $208,261,00
Acquisitions of receivable portfolios, n 7,698,001 291,00( 7,989,001
Net cash collections from collection of consumeereables
acquired for liquidatiol (72,398,00) (26,036,00) (98,434,00)
Net cash collections represented by account sélesnsumel
receivables acquired for liquidatic (3,481,000 (4,000 (3,485,00i)
Impairments — (13,029,00) (13,029,00)
Effect of foreign currency translatic — 97,00( 97,00(
Finance income recognized| 43,879,00 1,753,00! 45,632,000
Balance, end of peric $ 46,348,00 $100,683,00 $147,031,00
Revenue as a percentage of collecti 57.&% 6.7% 44.&%

(1) Includes $34.3 million derived from fully amortizedols.
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For the Year Ended September 30, 200

Interest Cost
Method Recovery
Portfolios Portfolios Total
Balance, beginning of peric $ 203,470,00 $245,542,00  $ 449,012,00
Acquisitions of receivable portfolios, n 19,129,00 423,00( 19,552,00
Net cash collections from collection of consumeereables
acquired for liquidation(1 (96,543,00) (42,204,00) (138,747,00)
Net cash collections represented by account sél
consumer receivables acquired for liquidal (4,963,001 (3,699,000 (8,662,001
Transfer to cost recovery( (20,128,00) 10,128,00 —
Impairments (108,534,00) (74,966,00) (183,500,00)
Effect of foreign currency translatic — 450,00( 450,00(
Finance income recognized| 68,219,00 1,937,00! 70,156,00
Balance, end of peric $ 70,650,00  $137,611,00 $208,261,00
Revenue as a percentage of collecti 67.2% 4.2% 47.€%

(1) During the 12 months ended September 30, 200% thoefolios were transferred from the interesthodtto
the cost recovery method. Based on the natureesktbortfolios and the recent cash flows, our edémof the
timing of expected cash flows became uncer

(2) Includes $40.7 million derived from fully amortizedols.
As of September 30, 2010, the Company had $140Q081n consumer receivables acquired for liquidgtiaf

which $46,348,000 are accounted for on the interethod. Based upon current projections, net ca&ctions,
applied to principal for interest method portfolex® estimated as follows for the twelve monththeperiods

ending:

September 30, 201 $18,789,00

September 30, 201 15,212,00

September 30, 201 7,875,00!

September 30, 201 4,059,001

September 30, 201 1,030,00!
September 30, 201 777,00(
September 30, 201 180,00(
Deferred revenu (1,574,001
Total $46,348,00

Accretable yield represents the amount of incoreeGbmpany can expect to generate over the remaining
amortizable life of its existing portfolios based estimated future net cash flows as of Septembe2@L0. The
Company adjusts the accretable yield upward whbali¢ves, based on available evidence, that giartfo
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collections will exceed amounts previously estirdaterojected accretable yield for the fiscal yearded
September 30, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

Year Ended
September 30
2010
Balance at beginning of period, October 1, 2 $ 25,875,000
Income recognized on finance receivables, (43,208,00)
Additions representing expected revenue from plaes$ 2,424,001
Reclassifications from n«accretable difference(: 30,164,00
Balance at end of period, September 30, 2 $ 15,255,00
Year Ended
September 30,
__ 2009
Balance at beginning of period, October 1, 2 $ 58,134,00
Income recognized on finance receivables, (68,219,00)
Additions representing expected revenue from plaes 5,980,001
Transfer to cost recove (3,372,00i)
Reclassifications from n«-accretable difference(: 33,352,00
Balance at end of period, September 30, z $ 25,875,00

(1) Includes portfolios that became zero based poosdadiuring the period, removal of zero basis padfofrom the
accretable yield calculation and, other immatangdairments and accretions based on the certaiaction
curves being extende

During the year ended September 30, 2010, the Coynmarchased $269 million of face value charged-off
consumer receivables at a cost of approximatelyy 88llion. During the year ended September 30, 2009
Company purchased $577 million of face value chdugfé consumer receivables at a cost of approxipate
$19.6 million. The estimated remaining net collees on the receivables purchased and classifiedruhd interest
method ($7.7 million) during the fiscal year en@&abtember 30, 2010, are $7.0 million.

The following table summarizes collections on asgrbasis as received by the Company’s thady collectior
agencies and attorneys, less commissions and dstg for the years ended September 30, 2010, &0d)2008,
respectively.

For the Years Ended, September 3(

2010 2009 2008
Gross collections(1 $157,574,00 $224,528,00 $332,711,00
Commissions and fees( 55,654,000 77,119,00 124,737,00
Net collections $101,920,00 $147,409,00 $207,974,00

(1) Gross collections include: collections from thirdAy collection agencies and attorneys, collectfoos in-
house efforts and collections represented by a¢sales
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(2) Commissions and fees are the contractual commissiamed by third party collection agencies anutadtys,
and direct costs associated with the collectioareffjenerally court costs. The Company expectotdinue to
purchase portfolios and utilize third party collentagencies and attorney networ

Finance income recognized on net collections remtesl by account sales was $1.2 million, $3.1 amlind
$9.4 million for the fiscal years ended Septemiier2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
NoTeE C —FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture and equipment as of September 30, 20d@®@69 consist of the following:

2010 2009

Furniture $ 310,00 $ 310,00(
Equipment 2,855,001 2,783,001
Software 153,00( 117,00(
Leasehold improvemen 86,00( 86,00(
3,404,00! 3,296,001

Less accumulated depreciati 3,066,001 2,758,001
Balance, end of peric $ 338,000 $ 538,00(

Depreciation expense for the years ended SepteBh@010, 2009 and 2008 aggregated $308,000, $3a.1,0
and $319,000, respectively.

NoTeE D —DEBT AND SUBORDINATED DEBT — RELATED PARTY

The Company’s debt and subordinated debt — reledety at September 30, 2010 and 2009 are summaagzed

follows:
2010
Stated Average
Interest Interest
2010 2009 Rate Rate

Credit Facility— IDB $ — $ 18,301,00 —% 5.5%
Credit Agreemen— Bank Leumi — — — 4.5%
Receivables Financing Agreemt 90,483,00 104,321,00 3.7¢% 3.7%
Total debt $90,483,00 $122,622,00 n/e 3.81%
Subordinated del— related party $ 4,386,000 $ 8,246,00! 10.0(% 8.65%

Leumi Credit Agreement

On December 14, 2009 Asta Funding, Inc. and itsiglidries other than Palisades XVI, entered ineoltbumi
Credit Agreement which permits maximum principatauces of up to $6 million. The term of the agreenie
through December 31, 2010. The interest rate lisadifig rate equal to the Bank Leumi Reference Ratgs 2%,
with a floor of 4.5%. The loan is secured by c@fat consisting of all of the assets of the Compathgr than those
of Palisades XVI. In addition, other collateral tbe loan consists of a pledge by GMS Family InmesstLLC, an
investment company owned by members of the Stenilyfan the form of cash and securities with a \abf 133%
of the loan commitment. There are no financial cave restrictions for the Leumi Credit Agreement. O
December 14, 2009, approximately $3.6 million & Bank Leumi credit line was used to reduce to
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zero the remaining balance of the IDB Credit Faciiescribed below. The Leumi Credit Agreemenhés ¢urrent
senior facility of the Company. The Leumi CreditrAgment balance was reduced to zero in January, Aot@ver
the $6 million of availability remains. The Compasyworking with its bank on a new credit facilitgth a larger
credit limit.

Receivables Financing Agreement

In March 2007, Palisades XVI borrowed approxima@&2g7 million under the Receivables Financing
Agreement, as amended in July 2007, December 208y 2008 and February 2009 with BMO, in order twafice
the Portfolio Purchase. The Portfolio Purchaseapdrchase price of $300 million (plus 20% of reyments after
Palisades XVI recovers 150% of its purchase priase post of funds, which recovery has not yet o) Prior to
the modification, discussed below, the debt wasrédourse only to Palisades XVI and bore an isterate of
approximately 170 basis points over LIBOR. The ioadjterm of the agreement was three years. This teas
extended by each of the Second, Third , FourthFftlll Amendments to the Receivables Financing Agre as
discussed below. The Receivables Financing Agreeoterained cross default provisions related tolfi# Credit
Facility. This cross default could only occur iretbvent of a non-payment in excess of $2.5 millibthe IDB
Credit Facility. Proceeds received as a resulhefrtet collections from the Portfolio Purchaseaguglied to interest
and principal of the underlying loan. The Portfdiarchase is serviced by Palisades Collection la.@holly
owned subsidiary of the Company, which has engageffiliated subservicers for a majority of the faio
Purchase.

Since the inception of the Receivables FinancingeAment amendments have been signed to revisaisario
terms of the Receivables Financing Agreement. BHeviing is a summary of the material amendments:

Second Amendment — Receivables Financing Agreerdated December 27, 2007 revised the amortization
schedule of the loan from 25 months to approxinge@&lmonths. BMO charged Palisades XVI a fee of63d00
which was paid on January 10, 2008. The fee waisatiapd and is being amortized over the remairifegof the
Receivables Financing Agreement.

Third Amendment —Receivables Financing Agreement, dated May 19, 20@8nded the payments of the |
through December 2010. The lender also increasethtarest rate from 170 basis points over LIBOR to
approximately 320 basis points over LIBOR, subfecutomatic reduction in the future if additiocabital
contributions are made by the parent of Palisadés X

Fourth Amendment — Receivables Financing Agreendated February 20, 2009, among other things,
(i) lowered the collection rate minimum to $1 nahi per month (plus interest and fees) as an avéoagach perio
of three consecutive months, (ii) provided for atoanatic extension of the maturity date from ABfl, 2011 to
April 30, 2012 should the outstanding balance lbeiced to $25 million or less by April 30, 2011 and
(iii) permanently waived the previous terminatioreets. The interest rate remains unchanged at sippately
320 basis points over LIBOR, subject to automagduction in the future should certain collectionestones be
attained.

As additional credit support for repayment by Radiss XVI of its obligations under the Receivablemfcing
Agreement and as an inducement for BMO to entertimt Fourth Amendment, the Company provided BMO a
limited recourse, subordinated guaranty, securethéassets of the Company, in an amount not teezkc
$8.0 million plus reasonable costs of enforcemedt@llection. Under the terms of the guaranty, BM&not
exercise any recourse against the Company untédheer of (i) five years from the date of the RbuAmendment
and (ii) the termination of the Company’s existsenior lending facility or any successor senioilitstc
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On October 26, 2010, Palisades XVI entered intd=ifta Amendment to the Receivables Financing Agreset
(the “Fifth Amendment”). The effective date of thifth Amendment is October 14, 2010. The Fifth Aherent
(i) extends the expiration date of the Receivableancing Agreement to April 30, 2014, (ii) redu¢es minimum
monthly total payment to $750,000, (iii) accelesdiee Company’s guarantee credit enhancement 306800,
which was paid upon execution of the Fifth Amendmém) eliminates the Company’s limited guarantée
repayment of the loans outstanding by Palisades X (v) revises the definition of “Borrowing Ba3eficit”, as
defined in the Receivables Financing Agreementéan the excess, if any, of 105% of the loans anihg over
the borrowing base.

In connection with the Fifth Amendment, on OctoBér 2010, the Company entered into the Omnibus
Termination Agreement (the “Termination Agreementhe limited recourse subordinated guaranty discleséde
the Fourth Amendment, was eliminated upon signiegTitermination Agreement. See Subsequent Eventiote-O

The aggregate minimum repayment obligations reduiraler the Fifth Amendment, including interest and
principal, for fiscal years ending September 3d,2through 2013 are $9 million annually, and, fa fiscal year
ended September 30, 2014, is approximately $5anillseven months) .

On September 30, 2010 and 2009, the outstandirgdalon this loan was approximately $90.5 millemqd
$104.3 million, respectively. The applicable instreate at September 30, 2010 and 2009 was 3.7 &Hilnyears.
The average interest rate of the Receivable Fingnggreement was 3.77% and 4.82% for the yearscende
September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

The Company’s average debt obligation (excludirgsihbordinated debt — related party) for the figesrs
ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, was approxin&g8I0 million and $162.5 million, respectivelyh& averag
interest rate was 3.81% and 4.72%, respectiveithioyears ended September 30, 2010 and 2009.

IDB Credit Facility

The Eighth Amendment to the IDB Credit Facility emed into on July 10, 2009, granted an initial $#iion
line of credit from the Bank Group for portfolio qmhhases and working capital and was scheduleditaceeto zero
by December 31, 2009. The IDB Credit Facility bmterest at the lesser of LIBOR plus an applicabégin, or th
prime rate minus an applicable margin based omiceltverage ratios, with a minimum rate of 5.5%e TDB
Credit Facility was collateralized by all assetshf Company other than the assets of Palisadesak®¥ tontained
financial and other covenants. The IDB Credit Fgcd commitment termination date was December289. This
IDB Credit Facility was repaid on December 14, 20D8e balance of the IDB Credit Facility was $18#lion on
September 30, 2009.

Subordinated Debt — Related Party

On April 29, 2008, the Company obtained a subotdthéoan pursuant to a subordinated promissory fnote
the Family Entity. The Family Entity is a greateamh 5% shareholder of the Company beneficially ahared
controlled by Arthur Stern, a Director of the CompaGary Stern, the Chairman, President and Chietttive
Officer of the Company, and members of their fagsiliThe loan was in the aggregate principal amofunt
approximately $8.2 million, bore interest at a raft®.25% per annum, was payable interest only eaelnter until
its maturity date of January 9, 2010, subject torpepayment in full of the Company’s senior Idanility with the
Bank Group. The subordinated loan was incurrechbydompany to resolve certain issues related tadtigities of
one of the subservicers utilized by Palisades Ctfie LLC under the Receivables Financing Agreemriceeds
from the subordinated loan were used initiallyudHter collateralize the Company’s revolving loanifity with the
Bank Group and was used to reduce the balancerdti@bfacility as of May 31, 2008. In
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December 2009, the subordinated debt-related paatyrity date was extended through December 310.201
addition the interest rate was changed to 10% mpeura. In fiscal year 2010, the subordinated loas paid down t
a balance of approximately $4.4 million at Septeng@fe 2010. On November 16, 2010, the Company raade
additional $2.0 million loan repayment, reducing than balance to $2.4 million (see Note O — Subert
Events).

NoTE E —OTHER LIABILITIES

Other liabilities as of September 30, 2010 and 28@%as follows:

2010 2009
Accounts payable and accrued expet $1,227,000  $1,425,00!
Accrued interest payab 321,00t 504,00(
Other 557,00( 237,00(

Total other liabilities $2,105,000  $2,166,00

NoTE F — INCOME TAXES

The components of the provision for income taxenéiit) for the years ended September 30, 201(® 264
2008 are as follows:

2010 2009 2008
Current:
Federa $ 2,215,000  $(47,062,00) $6,567,00
State 175,00( (1,220,001 2,152,00!
Federal true uj (5,588,001 — —
Foreign — — 34,00(
(3,198,001 (48,282,00) 8,753,00i
Deferred:
Federa 3,882,001 1,092,00! (1,987,001
State 1,428,00! (9,597,001 (647,000
5,310,001 (8,505,001 (2,634,000
Provision for income taxe $2,112,000 $(56,787,00) $6,119,00i

The difference between the statutory federal inctareate on the Company’s pre-tax income and the
Company'’s effective income tax rate is summarizetbdows:

2010 2009 2008

Statutory federal income tax re 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State income tax, net of federal ben 6.2 5.8 5.8
Deferred tax valuation allowan: 15.¢  (2.)) —
Permanenbook-tax differences and true uj (15.9) — —
Other 149 (0.2 01
Effective income tax rat 40.5% 38.5% 40.9%
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The Company recognized a net deferred tax as$t& 762,000 and $24,072,000 as of September 30, &
2009, respectively. The components are as follows:

September 30 September 30

2010 2009

Deferred revenu $ 638,000 $ 221,00(
Impairments 12,228,00 12,472,00
State tax net operating loss carryforw 10,768,00 14,488,00
Compensation expen 496,00( 1,273,00!
Other (131,001 26,00(

Deferred income taxe 23,999,00 28,480,00
Deferred tax valuation allowan: (5,237,001 (4,408,001
Deferred income taxe $18,762,00  $24,072,00

The Company files consolidated Federal and statanie tax returns. The Company’s subsidiaries aigdesi
member limited liability companies (LLC) and, thine, do not file separate tax returns.

The Company accounts for income taxes using thet assl liability method which requires the recoigmitof
deferred tax assets and, if applicable, deferredidhilities, for the expected future tax consemges of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts and thbdaes of assets and, if applicable, liabilithdditionally, the
Company would adjust deferred taxes to reflectrested tax rate changes, if applicable. The Compangucts
periodic evaluations to determine whether it is endeely than not that some or all of its defertad assets will not
be realized. Among the factors considered in théduation are estimates of future earnings, theréuteversal of
temporary differences and the impact of tax plagrstmategies that we can implement if warranteé Company is
required to provide a valuation allowance for anytion of our deferred tax assets that, more likken not, will nc
be realized at September 30, 2010. Based on thisa&tion, the Company has a deferred tax assettiaiu
allowance of $5.3 million as of September 30, 20though the carryforward period for state incotae purposes
is up to twenty years, given the economic cond#jauch economic environment could limit growthroae
reasonable time period to realize the deferrec$met. The Company determined the time period athow for
carryforward is outside a reasonable period todasefull realization of the deferred tax assedréfore recognized
the deferred tax asset valuation allowance. Theg2my continually monitors forecast information tsere the
valuation allowance is at the appropriate valuergtpired by FASB ASC 740, Income Taxes, the Compan
recognizes the financial statement benefit of gtasition only after determining that the releviat authority
would more likely than not sustain the positioddaling an audit. For tax positions meeting the rddeely-than-
not threshold, the amount recognized in the firgratatements is the largest benefit that hasagréhan
50 percent likelihood of being realized upon ultiemaettiement with the relevant tax authority.

Upon the completion of the Company’s Federal tanrrefor fiscal year 2009 and the application fog tax
refund completed earlier in the second quarterFaaeral tax refund estimate of $46 million wadges upward to
approximately $52 million which caused the $5.6lionil true up in the current year. This change waes t a
combination of applying the Federal tax net opatatoss carryback and the recognition of the béoétihe state
net operating loss carryforwards for federal tagppses, and other timing differences applied toctiveent year tax
return. These adjustments did not affect the statemf operations and resulted in a net adjustrietvteen the
federal income tax receivable and the deferrechtmet.

The Company received a Federal tax refund of apmately $52.7 million based on the results of figear
2009 and recent tax law changes for net operatisg darryback. Income tax benefits related to stateere the
Company files tax returns only apply to future yed&to loss carrybacks are allowed.
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The Corporate federal income tax returns of the @amy for 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009 are subject to
examination by the IRS, generally for three yedter dhey are filed. The state income tax returmd ether state
filings of the Company are subject to examinatigrite state taxing authorities for various periggmserally up to
four years after they are filed.

In April 2010, the Company received naotificationrfr the IRS that the Company’s 2008 and 2009 federal
income tax returns will be audited. This auditusrently in progress.

NoTeE G —CoMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Employment Agreements

On January 25, 2007, the Company entered into gghogment agreement (the “Employment Agreementth
the Company’s Chairman, President and Chief Exee@ifficer, expiring on December 31, 2009, provided
however, that Gary Stern is required to provideetyirdays prior written notice if he does not intéadeek an
extension or renewal of the Employment Agreemehé Tompany and Mr. Stern are in the process olifing an
extension of this agreement. In the interim peNd Stern continues his duties as Chief Executitécér at the
discretion of the Board of Directors of the CompamyJanuary 2008, the Company entered into a airilo year
employment agreement with Cameron Williams, the Gamy’s former Chief Operating Officer. The contraets
not renewed and expired December 31, 2009. On NbgeBD, 2009, the Company entered into a Consulting
Services Agreement with Mr. Williams for servicesaugh December 31, 2010.

Leases

The Company leases its facilities in Englewoodf€liNew Jersey and Sugar Land, Texas. The leases ar
operating leases, and the Company incurred retatgdexpense in the amounts of $395,000, $611,068%553,00!
during the years ended September 30, 2010, 2002@0®)} respectively. The future minimum lease payare as

follows:

Year

Ending

September 3C

2011 $ 270,00(
2012 237,00(
2013 236,00(
2014 236,00(
2015 197,00(

$1,176,001

Contingencies

In the ordinary course of its business, the Compsiiryvolved in numerous legal proceedings. The Gamy
regularly initiates collection lawsuits, using itstwork of third party law firms, against consumetso, consumers
occasionally initiate litigation against the Compaim which they allege that the Company has veada federal or
state law in the process of collecting their actoihe Company does not believe that these matermaterial to
its business and financial condition. The Companyait involved in any material litigation in whighwas a
defendant.
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NoTE G —COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES — (CONTINUED)

The Company received subpoenas from three jurisdeseeking information and/or documentation reigar
its business practices. The Company is fully coafieg with the issuing agencies. The Company haswagle any
provision with respect to these matters in therfaial statements because the Company does notvédhiat they ai
material to its business and financial condition.

The Company has an ongoing dispute with one @igfsificant third party servicers regarding certain
provisions in the servicing agreement between tlmepanies. The Company contends that there are amdue the
Company under a profit-sharing arrangement. Thécarhas acknowledged the profit sharing arrangerinet
disagrees with the calculation of the amount owattlitionally, the servicer has asserted that then@any owes th
servicer certain amounts with regard to a portfelite and court costs allegedly incurred by theiser and not pai
to the servicer by the Company. The companies icoatio negotiate a settlement for these items.Cdrapany
does not believe the final settlement will haveadierse material effect on the Company.

NoTE H —CONCENTRATIONS

At September 30, 2010, approximately 36% of outfplios were serviced by five collection organizais. We
have servicing agreements in place with theseddlkection organizations as well as all of the Camygs other
third party collection agencies and attorneys tloater standard contingency fees and servicingeftitounts.

NoTE | —Stock OPTION PLANS
Equity Compensation Plan

On December 1, 2005, the Board of Directors adofitedCompany’s Equity Compensation Plan (the “Bquit
Compensation Plan”), which was approved by thekstoiclers of the Company on March 1, 2006. The Bquit
Compensation Plan was adopted to supplement theo@uyis existing 2002 Stock Option Plan. In addition
permitting the grant of stock options as are pdaaditinder the 2002 Stock Option Plan, the Equitsn@ensation
Plan allows the Company flexibility with respectaguity awards by also providing for grants of ktawards (i.e.
restricted or unrestricted), stock purchase rights stock appreciation rights.

The general purpose of the Equity Compensation Blemprovide an incentive to the Company’s empts;
directors and consultants, including executiveceifs, employees and consultants of any subsidjdyesnabling
them to share in the future growth of the busin€ke. Board of Directors believes that the granthgtock options
and other equity awards promotes continuity of ngangent and increases incentive and personal iniartdse
welfare of the Company by those who are primaslgponsible for shaping and carrying out the lomgeaplans
and securing growth and financial success.

The Board believes that the Equity Compensation Ridl advance the Company’s interests by enhanitgg
ability to (a) attract and retain employees, diveztand consultants who are in a position to maj@ficant
contributions to the Company’s success; (b) reveangloyees, directors and consultants for theseibatibns; and
(c) encourage employees, directors and consultariéke into account the Company’s long-term irger¢hrough
ownership of the Company’s shares.

The Company has 1,000,000 shares of Common Stdbkrézed for issuance under the Equity Compensation
Plan and 878,334 were available as of Septembe&2(@. As of September 30, 2010, approximatelydfthe
Company’s employees were eligible to participatthenEquity Compensation Plan. Future grants utideEquity
Compensation Plan have not yet been determined.
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NoTE | —Stock OPTION PLANS — (CONTINUED)
2002 Stock Option Plan

On March 5, 2002, the Board of Directors adoptedAkta Funding, Inc. 2002 Stock Option Plan (the02
Plan™), which plan was approved by the Companyisidtolders on May 1, 2002. The 2002 Plan was addpte
order to attract and retain qualified directorgicefs and employees of, and consultants to, thagamy. The
following description does not purport to be contpland is qualified in its entirety by referencehe full text of
the 2002 Plan, which is included as an exhibih®@ompany’s reports filed with the SEC.

The 2002 Plan authorizes the granting of incergteek options (as defined in Section 422 of the&}@ohd
non-qualified stock options to eligible employeéshe Company, including officers and directorgttd Company
(whether or not employees) and consultants of th@gany.

The Company has 1,000,000 shares of Common Stdbkréed for issuance under the 2002 Plan and 3é3,1
were available as of September 30, 2010. As ofedeiper 30, 2010, approximately 102 of the Company’s
employees were eligible to participate in the 280#h. On December 11, 2009, the Compensation Cdeerof the
Board of Directors of the Company, granted 25,a060ksoptions to each director of the Company othan the
chief executive officer, for a total of 150,000akmptions and 8,900 stock options to employedb@fCompany,
who had been employed at the Company for at I@astenths prior to December 11, 2009. The grantmployee
excluded officers of the Company. The exerciseepoicthese options was $8.07, the market pricdnerate of
grant.

1995 Stock Option Plan

The 1995 Stock Option Plan expired on SeptembeP0d5. The plan was adopted in order to attractratain
qualified directors, officers and employees of, andsultants to the Company. The following desmiptioes not
purport to be complete and is qualified in its \et§i by reference to the full text of the 1995 &t@ption Plan,
which is included as an exhibit to the Companyjzorés filed with the SEC.

The 1995 Stock Option Plan authorized the grargifnigcentive stock options (as defined in Secti@@ 4f the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the€'Qoand non-qualified stock options to eligible @oyees of
the Company, including officers and directors & @ompany (whether or not employees) and consaltarthe
Company.

The Company authorized 1,840,000 shares of Comrtamk $or issuance under the 1995 Stock Option Plan.
All but 96,002 shares were utilized. As of Septenise 2005, no more options could be issued uridempian.
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NoTE | —Stock OPTION PLANS — (CONTINUED)
The following table summarizes stock option tratisas under the plans:

Year Ended September 30

2010 2009 2008
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Outstanding options at the beginning of
year 1,157,900 $ 10.7¢ 1,037,43¢ $ 11.6¢ 1,337,431 $ 9.3¢
Options grante: 158,90( 8.07 122,00( 2.9t — —
Options cancelle (66,700 17.4¢ (2,000 28.7¢ — —
Options exercise (328,06() 2.6 (539 2.9t (300,000 1.42
Outstanding options at the end of y 922,03¢ $ 12.7C¢ 1,157,90! $ 10.7¢ 1,037,431 $ 11.6¢
Exercisable options at the end of y 792,377 $ 13.6¢ 1,081,91: $ 11.31 1,031,431 $ 11.5¢

The Company recognized $807,000 of compensatioareserelated to stock options in the fiscal yededn
September 30, 2010. As of September 30, 2010, thaseb469,000 of unrecognized compensation caatiectto
unvested stock options. The Company recognized,$064and $92,000 of stock based compensation egpens
related to stock option grants in fiscal year 2668 2008, respectively.

The intrinsic value of the options exercised durisgal year 2010 was $1.3 million. The intrinsalwe of
options exercised during the fiscal year endede®epér 30, 2009 was not material, and for the samegin 2008
was $6.3 million. There was no intrinsic value loé butstanding and exercisable options as of Sdyete80, 2010,
2009 and 2008.

On December 11, 2009, the Compensation CommittéeedBoard of Directors of the Company granted @3
stock options to each director of the Company otihan the Chief Executive Officer, for a total &01000 options,
and 8,900 stock options to full time employeeshef Company who had been employed at the Comparat feast
six months prior to the grant date. The grantanpleyees excluded officers of the Company. The@serprice of
these options was $8.07, the market price on tteeafahe grant. The Company determined the fdirevaf the
options to be $7.14. The weighted average assungptised in the option pricing model were as follows

Risk-free interest rat 0.17%
Expected term (year: 10.C

Expected volatility 110.2%
Dividend yield 1.12%

On May 5, 2009, the Compensation Committee awat@2d000 stock options to employees of the Company,
of which 45,673 vested immediately. The remainihgres vest in two equal installments starting ory Bla2010.
The grant price of these options was $2.95, th&etarice on the date of the grant. The Compangrdehed the
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NoTE | —Stock OPTION PLANS — (CONTINUED)

fair value of the options to be $2.34. The weighaedrage assumptions used in the option pricingatsodere as

follows:
Risk-free interest rat 0.1&%
Expected term (year: 10.C
Expected volatility 111.7%
Dividend yield 1.14%
The following table summarizes information abow fitans’ outstanding options as of September 300220
Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Average
Range of Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Exercise Price Outstanding  Life (In Years) Price Exercisable Price
$2.8751- $ 5.750C 198,56¢ 51 $ 3.9C 168,90 $ 4.07
$5.7501- $ 8.625C 169,70( 8.€ 7.92 69,70 7.71
$14.3751- $17.250C 198,61: 3.1 14.8¢ 198,61: 14.8¢
$17.2501- $20.125( 340,16( 4.1 18.2¢ 340,16( 18.2¢
$25.8751- $28.750(C 15,00( 6.2 28.7¢ 15,00( 28.7¢
922,03¢ 5 $ 12.7C 792,37 $ 13.6¢

The following table summarizes information abowgtrieted stock transactions:

Weighted Weighted
Year Ended Average Year Ended Average

September 30, 201/ Grant Date September 30, 200 Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value

Unvested at the beginning of peri 35,33¢ $ 19.7: 80,667 $ 22.2¢
Awards grantet — 0.0C — 0.0C
Vested (17,669 19.7¢ (40,99%) 24.2¢
Forfeited — 0.0C (4,339 21.81
Unvested at the end of peri 17,66¢ $ 19.7¢ 35,33 $ 19.7¢

The Company recognized $382,000, $820,000 and 89@bf compensation expense during the fiscal years
ended September 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respgcfiverestricted stock. As of September 30, 2ah@re was
$1,000 of unrecognized compensation cost relatedivested restricted stock.

The Company recognized a total of $1,189,000, $#8and $1,013,000 in compensation expense fdiste
years ended September 30, 2010, 2009 and 200&ctasy, for the stock options and restricted ktgrants. As o
September 30, 2010, there was a total of $470,008recognized compensation cost related to unsesttek
options and restricted stock grants. The method tesealculate stock based compensation is thightriine pro-

rated method.
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NoTE J —STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY

During the year ended September 30, 2010, the Coyngheclared quarterly cash dividends aggregating
$1,161,000, which includes $0.02 per share, pertgyaf which $292,000 was accrued as of Septel®®e2010
and paid November 1, 2010.

During the year ended September 30, 2009, the Coymgheclared quarterly cash dividends aggregating
$1,142,000, which includes $0.02 per share, perteyaf which $286,000 was accrued as of Septer®®e2009
and paid November 2, 2009.

The Company expects to pay a regular cash dividehdure quarters, but the amount has not yet been
determined. This will be at the discretion of tleaitd of directors and will depend upon the Compafigiancial
condition, operating results, capital requirememd any other factors the board of directors demsant. In
addition, agreements with the Company’s lenders, rinagn time to time, restrict the ability to payitiends. As of
September 30, 2010, there were no such restrictions

NoTE K —RETIREMENT PLAN

The Company maintains a 401(k) Retirement Planriogell of its eligible employees. Matching cobtrtions
made by the employees to the plan are made aigbeetion of the board of directors each plan y€antributions
for the years ended September 30, 2010, 2009 b&i\26re $95,000, $74,000 and $121,000, respectively

NoTE L — FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

FASB ASC 825, Financial Instruments, (“ASC 8258quires disclosure of fair value information about
financial instruments, whether or not recognizedhenbalance sheet, for which it is practicablestimate that
value. Because there are a limited number of maueicipants for certain of the Company’s assatslabilities,
fair value estimates are based upon judgmentsdigpcredit risk, investor expectation of econogaditions,
normal cost of administration and other risk chaastics, including interest rate and prepaymeskt These
estimates are subjective in nature and involve taicgies and matters of judgment, which signifitpaaffect the
estimates.

The carrying value of consumer receivables acqudetiquidation was $147,031,000 at September2800.
The Company computed the fair value of the consuewdivables acquired for liquidation using itsefaisting
model and the fair value approximated $179,73040®eptember 30, 2010. The Company’s forecastindgeo
utilizes a discounted cash flow analysis. The Camjsacash flows are an estimate of collectionsalbof our
consumer receivables based on variables fully destin Note B: Consumer Receivables Acquired figuidation.
These cash flows are then discounted to deterrhméair value.

The carrying value of debt and subordinated dethatgd party) was $94,869,000 and $130,868,000 at
September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Theritafd these loan balances are variable rate aod-germ,
therefore, the carrying amounts approximate fainea

NoTE M —RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On April 29, 2008, the Company obtained a subotdthéoan pursuant to a subordinated promissory fnote
the Family Entity. The loan is in the aggregategpal amount of approximately $8.2 million, besrterest at a ra
of 6.25% per annum, is payable interest only eagrtgr until its maturity date of January 9, 20dihject to prior
repayment in full of the Company’s senior loan ligciwith the Bank Group. In December 2009 the pissary
note’s maturity date was extended to December @10.2and the interest rate was changed to 10%rpema
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NOTE M —RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS — (CONTINUED)

On January 27, 2010, the Company re-paid approrimn&B60,740 of the subordinated loan. The Company
delivered $787,500 to the Family Entity, and wilisler $73,240 to BMO to hold as collateral, asragpnately
8.5% of the loan to the Family Entity secures thigations due to BMO by Palisades Acquisition XVLC, the
Company'’s wholly owned subsidiary. The Family Bntiien delivered its portion of the loan paymenGtary
Stern, who used it to exercise the stock optionsrded to him in 2000 (300,000 stock options underli995 Stock
Option Plan of Asta Funding, Inc. with an exergisiee of $2.625 per share). On February 17, 20 Clompany
re-paid $1,500,000 of principal of the subordindteth. The Company delivered $1,372,365 to the Falnitity,
and delivered $127,635 to BMO to hold as collateral

The Company paid GMS Family Investors, a relatetypa 2% collateral fee of $160,000, related ® #éissets
pledged by GMS Family Investors for the $6.0 millBank Leumi Credit Agreement.

On March 26, 2010, the Company re-paid $1,500,0@0incipal of the subordinated loan. The Company
delivered $1,372,365 to the Family Entity, andbmaining $127,635 to BMO to hold as collateral.

On November 16, 2010, the Company repaid $1,97000@@ncipal on the Subordinated Loan with the Hgm
entity. The remaining balance due to the FamilyitEninder the Subordinated Loan after this paynient
approximately $2,416,000. See Note O — Subsequestitk.

NOTE N —SUMMARIZED QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED)

First Second Third Fourth Full
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
2010
Total revenue $ 11,053,000 $11,200,00 $12,097,000 $ 11,499,00 $ 45,849,00
Income (loss) before income tax 4,165,00! 4,839,001 5,242,001 (9,005,00) 5,241,001
Net (loss) incom 2,475,001 2,875,00i 3,121,001 (5,342,00i) 3,129,001
Basic net (loss) income per shi  $ 0.17 $ 0.2C % 021 $ (0.37) $ 0.2z
Diluted net (loss) income per shi $ 0.17 $ 0.2C $ 021 $ 0.37) $ 0.22
2009
Total revenue $ 18,465,000 $18,054,00 $17,272,00 $ 16,564,00 $ 70,355,00
Income (loss) before income tax  (13,147,00) (8,674,00) 2,491,000 (128,182,00) (147,512,00)
Net income (loss (7,837,00) (5,168,00) 1,478,00 (79,198,00)  (90,725,00)
Basic net income (loss) per shi  $ (0.55) $ (0.3¢) $ 0.1C $ (5.55) $ (6.36)
Diluted net income (loss) per shi $ (055 $ (0.3¢) $ 0.1C $ (5.5%) $ (6.3€)

* Due to rounding the sum of quarterly totals fom@ags per share may not add to the yearly t

A significant portion of the $183.5 million of impeents recorded in fiscal year 2009, $137.0 millivere
recorded in the fourth quarter . Historically, muyithrough the year and into the fourth quarteitections tend to
be stable or perhaps increase in performance. @tinis fiscal year, collections increased sliglitym the second
quarter to the third quarter, and given histortoahds, our expectation was to have a stable faurénter with
regard to collections. However, we were not ablsustain that trend and fourth quarter collectiwese lower by
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NOTE N —SUMMARIZED QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED ) — (CONTINUED)

approximately 20% as compared to the third quarftéiscal year 2009. Subsequent internal and eatdorecast
models confirmed the trend seen in the fourth g@ua@ur impairment analysis indicated the amoiitraschedules
established at the time of the acquisition of thpacted portfolios were not in line with the ecompoonditions in
which we currently operate. Continued economiclengks in the fourth quarter, such as the peakinigeo
unemployment rate and conditions at a significangiser, which ultimately led to a bankruptcy fiinhave
impacted the Company’s performance in the fourtirggu. As such we concluded that the significargdirments
were properly recorded in the fourth quarter ofdisyear 2009.

NoTE O —SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On October 26, 2010, Palisades XVI entered intd=ifta Amendment. The effective date of the Fifth
Amendment is October 14, 2010. The Fifth Amendn{@rextends the expiration date of the ReceivaBlaancing
Agreement to April 30, 2014, (ii) reduces the minimmonthly total payment to $750,000, (iii) accates the
Company'’s guarantee credit enhancement of $8,700v@llich was paid upon execution of the Fifth Ammedt,
(iv) eliminates the Company’s limited guaranteeegfayment of the loans outstanding by Palisades X
(v) revises the definition of “Borrowing Base Déficas defined in the Receivables Financing Agreatnto mean
the excess, if any, of 105% of the loans outstamdirer the borrowing base.

In connection with the Fifth Amendment, on OctoB6r 2010, we entered into the Termination AgreemmEmd
Termination Agreement provides that, upon paymé#8¢700,000 to the Lender and execution of théhFif
Amendment, the following agreements, which wereratt into by the Company and certain of its atiihentities
in connection with the guaranty of the outstandaans under the Receivables Financing Agreement we
terminated: (i) the Subordinated Limited Recourse@nty Agreement, dated February 20, 2009, amsnguu
subsidiaries, and BMO; (ii) the Subordinated Gutma8ecurity Agreement, dated February 20, 2009 lie
Limited Recourse Guaranty Agreement, dated as lofugey 20, 2009; and (ithe Intercreditor Agreement, datec
of February 20, 2009. The Termination Agreemeseffisctive as of October 14, 2010.

On November 16, 2010, the Company repaid $1,97000p@ncipal on the Subordinated Loan with the gm
entity. The remaining balance due to the FamilyitEninder the Subordinated Loan after this paynient
approximately $2,416,000.
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Subsidiary Companies

Name

Asta Funding, Inc.

Asta Funding Acquisition I, LL(
Asta Funding Acquisition I, LLC
Asta Funding Acquisition IV, LLC
Asta Commercial, LLC

Asta Funding.com, LL(
Palisades Acquisition I, LL(
Palisades Acquisition Il, LL(
Palisades Acquisition 1V, LL(
Computer Finance, LL!
Palisades Collection, LL!
Palisades Acquisition V, LL(
Palisades Acquisition VI, LL(
Palisades Acquisition VII, LL(
Palisades Acquisition VIII, LLC
Option Card, LLC

Palisades Acquisition 1X, LL(
VATIV Recovery Solutions LLC
Palisades Acquisition X, LL(
Cliffs Portfolio Acquisition |, LLC
Sylvan Acquisition |. LLC
Citizens Lending Group LL(
Palisades Acquisition XI LL(
Palisades Acquisition XII LL(
Palisades Acquisition XIII LLC
Palisades Acquisition XIV LL(
Palisades Acquisition XV LL(
Palisades Acquisition XVI LL(
Palisades Acquisition XVII LLC
Palisades Acquisition XVIII LLC
Brook Mays Joint Ventur
Ventura Services LL(
Palisades XlI Do Brasil Gesto Financeira L
LBLINY, LLC

ELR Holdings LLC

Asta GFN LLC

Asta Charthill, LLC

Prestiga Funding, LL(
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Exhibit 21.1

Jurisdiction
Under Percentag¢
Which Organized Owned

Delaware
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Colorado 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Texas 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Massachuseti 25%
Delaware 10C%
Brazil 99.€%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have issued our reports dated December 14, @ifi®espect to the consolidated financial stateimand
internal control over financial reporting includiedthe Annual Report of Asta Funding, Inc. on Fdr®aK for the
year ended September 30, 2010. We hereby constre tocorporation by reference of said reporhie
Registration Statements of Asta Funding, Inc. omsoS-8 (File No. 333-142201, effective April 1802, File
No. 33399911, effective September 20, 2002, and File388-38836, effective June 8, 2000); and Form SH8 (F
No. 333166212, effective May 12, 2010).

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP

New York, New York
December 14, 2010
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
I, Gary Stern, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fiista Funding, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or dmnéttate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimaliight of the circumstances under which sueteshents were
made, not misleading with respect to the perioceoad by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport,
fairly present in all material respects the finahcondition, results of operations and cash flofivhe registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actddul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant bhade:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaore
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thggmal information relating to the registrant,lirding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during tberiod in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financégarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopytwide reasonable assurance regarding the rétjabil
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerall
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentenisi
report our conclusions about the effectivenest@fdisclosure controls and procedures, as of thegthe
period covered by this report based on such evahjand

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportitigt
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgalrter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethe case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, ae@sonably likely to materially affect, the reggstt’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal
control over financial reporting, to the registrarguditors and the audit committee of the regigisaboard of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfiams):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the registrant’s ability to recgrtbcess,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedymanagement or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal canitover financial reporting.

/sl Gary Stern

Gary Stern
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Exeeufifficer
(Principal Executive Officer)

December 14, 2010

A signed original of this written statement reqdii®y Section 302 has been provided to the Compadynél
be retained by the Company and furnished to ther8&s and Exchange Commission or its staff pquest.
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION
I, Robert J. Michel, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fiista Funding, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or dmnéttate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimaliight of the circumstances under which sueteshents were
made, not misleading with respect to the perioceoad by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport,
fairly present in all material respects the finahcondition, results of operations and cash flofivhe registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actdédul 3a-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaore
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thggmal information relating to the registrant,lirding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during tberiod in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financégarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopytwide reasonable assurance regarding the rétjabil
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerall
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentenisi
report our conclusions about the effectivenest@fdisclosure controls and procedures, as of thegthe
period covered by this report based on such evahjand

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportitigt
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgalrter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethe case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, ae@sonably likely to materially affect, the reggstt’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal
control over financial reporting, to the registrarguditors and the audit committee of the regigisaboard of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfiams):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the registrant’s ability to recgrtbcess,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedymanagement or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal canitover financial reporting.

/s/ Robert J. Michel

Robert J. Michel
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

December 14, 2010

A signed original of this written statement reqdii®y Section 302 has been provided to the Compadynél
be retained by the Company and furnished to ther8&s and Exchange Commission or its staff pquest.
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EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Asta Furgdimc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 2010 as filed with the SecuritiesExahange Commission (the “Report”), I, Gary St&hijef
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursutmil8 U.S.C. ss. 1350, as adopted pursuant taoBex@6 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the consolitlate
financial condition of the company as of the daessented and the consolidated result of operatibtise
Company for the periods presented.

/sl Gary Stern

Gary Stern
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Dated: December 14, 2010

This certification has been furnished solely punsua Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 280@ is
not being filed as part of the 10-K as a separmseakure statement.

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadynél
be retained by the Company and furnished to ther8ms and Exchange Commission or its staff pquest.
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EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Asta Furgdimc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 2010 as filed with the SecuritiesEexahange Commission (the “Report”), |, Robert jctiMI|, Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursugmtl8 U.S.C. ss. 1350, as adopted pursuant teoBexd6 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the consolitlate
financial condition of the Company as of the dawessented and the consolidated result of operatibtise
Company for the periods presented.

/s/ Robert J. Michel

Robert J. Michel
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Dated: December 14, 2010

This certification has been furnished solely punsua Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 280@ is
not being filed as part of the 10-K as a separmseakure statement.

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadynél
be retained by the Company and furnished to ther8ms and Exchange Commission or its staff pquest.
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